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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows

T Freyman

C Soenderby (resigned 1 January 2013)
M Smith

S Hudson

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company 1s that of a holding company The directors are not aware, at the date of
this report, of any likely major changes 1n the company's activities next year

Business review

Fair review of the business
The profit after tax for the period was $1,854,000 (2011 $1,434,000)

Principal risks and uncertainties
The company 15 at risk from foreign exchange movements and has some risk from interest rate movements
However, the directors do not consider these to be significant risks

Directors' habilites
The company has made quahfyng third party mdemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report

Disclosure of information to the audtors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the company auditor 15 aware of that information The
directors confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and which they know the auditors are
unaware of

Reappointment of auditors
The auditors Deloitte LLP are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

K Gogay
Company secpéta
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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Directors' Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s nappropriate to presume that the
company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other wrregularities
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott Iberian Investments Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Abbott Iberian Investments Limited for the year ended 31
December 2012, set out on pages 5 to 10 which comrpise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and
related notes 1 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation 1s apphicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we night state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities (set out on page 2), the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumnstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant
accountmg estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Directors' Report to identify material
mconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opmion the financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts profit for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companmies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opmion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott Iberian Investments Limited

eeeeeees CONtInUed

Matters on which we are required to report by exeception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, in our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retuns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements are not i agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not reccived all the information and explanations we require for our audit

/%,g/(__f

Richard Muschamp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP,

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

23 September 2013
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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Profit and Loss Account for the
Year Ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note $000 $ 000
Turnover - -
Admimstrative expenses (16) (12)
Operating loss (16) (12)
Other interest receivable and similar income 3 1,870 1,446
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,854 1,434
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5 - -
Profit for the financial year 10 1,854 1,434

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations

The company has no recognhised gains or losses for the current or prior year other than the results above

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Abbott lIberian Investments Limited
(Registration number: 7071861)
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012

Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors

Creditors Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Shareholders' funds

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2013 and signed on its behalf by

M Smuth
Drrector

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Note

2012 2011
$ 000 $ 000
46,554 46,554
141,241 139,371
41 (25)
141,200 139,346
187,754 185,900
47,915 47,915
134,674 134,674
5,165 3,311
187,754 185,900




Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been apphied consistently throughout the
current and prior year

Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis and have been prepared in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

The company 1s exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as 90% or more of the voting rights are held
within the group

Exemption from preparing group accounts
The company has taken exemption from preparing group accounts as 1t 1s included 1n consohdated accounts for
a larger group which are drawn up as full consolidated audited accounts which are filed at Companies House

Going concern

The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position, are set out n the Business review which forms part of the Directors' report After making
enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue n
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting 1n preparing the annual report and accounts

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at historical cost less provision for any diminution i value

Taxation
UK corporation tax 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid, or recovered, using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all iming differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date Timing differences are differences between the company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the accounts that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those
in whrch they are recognised 1n the accounts A net deferred tax asset 1s recognised as recoverable only when, on
the basis of available evidence, it can be regarded as more hkely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted Deferred tax 1s not
discounted

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date All exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account

Audstor's remuneration

2012 2011
$ 000 $ 000

Audit of the financial statements 8 5
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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

crenenens CONTINUEd

3 Other interest receivable and ssmilar income

2012 2011
$ 000 $000

Interest from group companmies 1,870 1,446

4 Staff Costs

Duning the current and prior year, all the directors were paid by other affiliates within the Abbott Laboratories
group of companies They received no emoluments from the company The company has no other employees

5 Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2012 2011
$ 000 $ 000

Total current tax - -

Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

Tax on profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of
cotrporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 - 26 5%)

The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011

$ 000 $ 000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,854 1,434
Corporation tax at standard rate 454 380
Group rehef sutrendered from other group companies (454) (380)

Total current tax - -
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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

......... conftinued

6& Investments held as fixed assets

Shares in group undertakings and participating interests

Subsidiary
undertakings Total
$ 000 $ 000

Cost
At 1 January 2012 46,554 46,554
At 31 December 2012 46,554 46,554
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 46,554 46,554

Details of undertakings

The company has nvestments in the following subsicharies

Principal Activity  Share Class Holding
Abbott Iberian Investments (2) Ltd Holding Co Ordmary 100%

Through the company's investments in Abbott Iberian investments (2} Ltd, the company has investments in the
following companies

Country of Principal Activity  Share Class Holding
Incorporation
Abbott Laboratories SA Spain Healthcare Ordinary 54%
7 Debtors
2012 2011
$ 000 %000
Amounts owed by group undertakings 141,241 139,371
8 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
$000 $ 000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 28 13
Accruals 13 12
41 25
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Abbott Iberian Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

......... continned
9 Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
$000 $000
47,915,440 ordinary shares of $1 each 47,915 47,915
10 Reserves
Share
premium Profit and
account loss account Total
$ 000 $ 000 $000
At 1 January 2012 134,674 3,311 137,985
Profit for the year - 1,854 1,854
At 31 December 2012 134,674 5,165 139,839
11 Reconcihation of movement in sharcholders' funds
2012 2011
$ 000 $ 000
Profit attributable to the members of the company 1,854 1,434
New share capital subscribed - 46,553
Net addition to shareholders' funds 1,854 47,987
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 185,900 137,913
Shareholders' funds at 31 December 187,754 185,900

12 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing

transactions with other members of the group

13 Control

The company 1s controlled by the immediate parent company Abbott Luxembourg SARL, incorporated in
Luxembourg The smallest and largest group in which the accounts are consolidated 1s the ultimate parent
company Abbott Laboratories, incorporated in the State of Illinois, USA The consolidated accounts are
available to the public and may be obtained from Abbott Laboratories, 100 Abbott Park Road, Abbott Park,

[lhnors, IL 60064-6400, USA
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Earnings
{dolars and shares n thousands excepl per share data}

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Net Sales $39,873,910 $38,851,259 $35,166,721

Cost of products sold 15,119,718 15,540,880 14,665,192
Research and development 4,322,182 4,129,414 3,724,424
Acquired In-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 672,500 313,200
Selling, general and admmistrative 12,058,495 12,756,817 10,376,324

Totat Operating Cost and Expenses 31,789,395 33,099,311 29,073,140
Operating Earnings 8,084,515 5,751,948 6,087,581

Interest expense 592,403 530,141 553,135
Interest (iIncome) {79,225) {85,198) {105,453)
Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -

Net foreign exchange (gain} loss (8,044) (50,271) {10,924)
Other (income) expense, net (34,208) 158,632 {62,011)
Earnings Before Taxes 6,262,614 5,198,642 5,712,834

Taxes on Earnings 209,694 470,193 1,086,662

Net Earnings $ 5,962,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 376 $ 303 § 298
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share 3 372 % 301 $ 296
Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding Used for Basic

Earnings Per Common Share 1,575,378 1,657,643 1,546,400
Dilutve Common Stock Options and Awards 16,460 9,746 9,622
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Dilutve Common Stock Options and Awards 1,591,838 1,567,389 1,556,022
Qutstanding Gommon Stock Ophions Having No Dilutive Effect 1,166 26,789 25,403

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this stalement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
{dokars at thousards)

Year Ended Decamber 31 2012 2011 2010

Net Earmings $5,962.920 $4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Foreign currency translation (loss) adjustments (6.826}) (817,539) (2,290,256)
Net actuanal {losses) and pror service cost and credits and amortization of

net actuanal losses and pnor senice cost and credits,

net of taxes of $(276,076) in 2012, ${391,528) in 2011 and ${(70,389) n 2010 (864,935} {510,444) (59,447)
Unraalized {losses) gains on marketable equity secunties,

net of taxes of $(4,079) in 2012, $8,338 1n 2011 and $61 in 2010 {7.066) 14,442 106

Netl adjustments for demvative Instruments designated as cash flow hadges,

net of taxes of $(29,417) in 2012, $19,857 n 2011 and $20,567 n 2010 (117.666) 83,202 128,677

Other Comprehansive (loss) (996,493 {1,230,339) (2,220,920)
Comprehensive Income $4,966,427 $ 3,498,110 $ 2,405,252

Supplemental Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Information,

net of tax as of December 31

Cumulative foreign currency translation loss (gain) adjustiments $ 79353 $ 72527 $ (745.012)
Net actuanal losses and pnor service cost and credits 3,595,554 2,730,619 2,220,175

Cumulative unrealized (gains} on marketable equity secunties {31,363) (38,429) {23,987)
Cumnulative (gains} on dervative instruments designated as cash flow hedges {49,866) (167,532) {84,330)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{dodars n thousancts)

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Year Ended December 31 22 2011 2010
Cash Fow From (Used in} Operating Actvities

Net earnings $ 5,862,920 $4,728,449 $ 4626172
Adjustments to reconcile sarnings to net cash from operating actmvities —

Depreciation 1,363,673 1,395,371 1,207,450
Amortizatron of intangible assets 1,419,534 1,648,523 1,416,855
Share-based compensation 433,114 382,602 387,183
Acqurred In-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 672,500 313,200
Investing and financing {gans) losses, net 356,020 141,565 126,337
Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -
Trade recewvables 35,996 (670,152) (394,665)
Inventones (417,053) (129.,621) 139,857
Prepaid expenses and other assets {35,295) 413,266 553,145
Trade accounts payable and other labilities {134,209) 1,789,652 572,533
Income taxes (1,309,269) {1,402,078) {212,086)
Net Cash From Operating Actraties 9,314,401 8,970,077 8,735,981
Cash Flow From (Used i) Investng Activities

Acquistions of businesses and technologies, net of cash acquired (1,227.473) {672,500} (9,433,243}
Acquisitions of property and equipment (1,795,289) {1.421,500) (1.015,075)
Purchases of investrent secunties {11,997,654) (5,109,987) {805,932}
Proceeds from sales of investment secunties 8,936,406 5,648,720 954,361
Release of (depost of) restncted funds — 1,870,000 {1,870,000)
Olher 2.722 16,089 {18,426)
Net Cash (Used m) From investing Actvities (6,081,288} 260,832 (12,188,315}
Cash Flew From (Used in} Financing Activities

Proceseds from 1ssuance of {repayments of} short-term debt and other 783,868 {1,964,685) (203,854}
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and debt with matunties over 3 months 14,700,000 1,000,000 4,000,000
Repayments of long-term debt and debt with matunties over 3 months (11.071,178) (3.012,426} (1,673,998)
Purchases of common shares (2,364,240) (77,007} (866,825)
Proceeds from stock options exercisad, including income tax benefit 1,850,454 968,759 328,411
Dwvidends paid {3,182,811) (2,938,096} (2.671,475)
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Actmities 716,093 (6,023,455) (1,087,741)
Eftect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 40,137 (43,005) {620,893)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,989,343 3,164,449 5,160,968}
Cash and Cash Equwalents, Baginning of Year 6,812,820 3,648,371 8,809,339
Cash and Cash Equwalents, End of Year $ 10,802,163 $6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Supplementat Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 1,366,581 $ 1,781,602 $ 809710
Interest paid 575,895 544 559 580,168

The accomparnying notes to consolidated financial statemants are an integral part of this statemant
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Abbott 2012 Annual Repert

Consclidated Balance Sheet

{doktars i thousands)
Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $10,802,162 $ 6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Investments, pnmanly bank time deposits and U S treasury bills 4,371,821 1,284,539 1,803,079
Restncted funds, pnmanly U S treasury bills - - 1,872,490
Trade recenvables, less allowances of —
2012 $405,921, 2011 $420,579, 2010 $388,564 7,612,860 7,683,920 7,184,034
Inventones
Finished products 2,345,455 2,220,527 2,058,735
Work in process 628,874 432,358 383,580
Matenals B17,984 631,364 746,419
Total inventories 3,792,313 3,284,249 3,188,734
Deferred income taxes 2,986,216 2,700,540 3,076,051
Other prepaid expenses and recevables 1,757,210 2,002,706 1,544,770
Total Current Assets 31,322,583 23,768,774 22,317,529
Investments 273,595 378,225 302,049
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 604,462 633,917 648,988
Buldings 4,259,240 4,467,387 4,334,236
Equipment 13,110,833 12,216,388 11,813,618
Construciion in progress 954,352 698,873 577.460
18,928,887 18,016,565 17,374,302
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,865,840 10,142,610 9,403,346
Net Property and Equipment 8 063,047 7,873,955 7,970,956
intangible Assets, net of amortization 8,588,285 9,989,636 12,151,628
Goodwill 15,774,127 15,705,380 15,930,077
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Agseis 3,213,307 2,560,923 1,801,613
$67.234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852
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Consohdated Balance Sheet
(choltars i thousands)

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

December 31 2012 2011 2010

Liabiies and Shareholders’ Investment

Cument Liabiities

Short-term borrowings $ 2,081,839 $ 2,347,859 $ 4,349,796

Trade accounts payable 1,796,990 1,721.127 1,535,759

Salanes, wages and commissions 1,427,765 1,260,121 1,328,665

Other accnued kabiitres 6,787,995 7.854,994 6,014,772

Dwidends payable 221,340 754,284 680,749

Income taxes payable 655,424 514,947 1,307,723

Current portion of long-term debt 308,823 1,026,896 2,044,970

Total Curvent Liabiities 13,280,176 15,480,228 17,262,434

Long-term Debt 18,085,302 12,039,822 12,523,517

Post-employment Obligations and Other Long-term Liabilities 9,056,234 8,230,698 8022770

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders Investment

Preferred sharss, cne dollar par value

Authonzed — 1,000,000 shares, none issued - - -

Common shares, without par value

Authonzed — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484,

2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 11,754,552 9,817,134 8,744,703

Common shares held In treasury, at cost —

Shares 2012 99,262,992,

2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 (5,590,909 {3,687,478) (3,.916,823)

Earmings employed in the business 24,150,996 20,907,362 19,215,768

Accumulated other comprehensive iIncome {loss) (3,5693,678) {2,697,185) (1,366.,846)

Total Abbott Shareholders' Investment 26,720,961 24,439,833 22,676,802

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidanes 92,271 86,312 88,329

Total Sharcholders' Investment 26,813,232 24,526,145 22,765,131
$67,234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement




Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment
{dodars in thousands excep) per share dala)

Year Ended Decembar 31 2012 20011 2010
Common Shares

Beginning of Year

Shares 2012 1,638,870,201, 2011 1,619,689,876, 2010 1,612,683,087 $ 9,817,134 $ 8,744,703 $ 8,257,873

Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares 2012 37,060,283, 2011 19,180,325, 2010 7,005,839 1,853,574 954,148 316,071

Share-based compensation 434 601 382,326 388,493
Issuance of restncted stock awards {350,757} {264,043} {217,734)
End of Year

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484, 2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,683,876 $11,754,552 $ 9,817,134 $ 8,744,703

Common Shares Held in Treasury

Beginning of Year

Sharas 2012 68,491,382, 2011 72,705,928, 2010 61,516,398 $ (3,687,478} $({3.916,823) $43,310,347)
Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares 2012 6,691,748, 2011 4,638,841, 2010 4,166,200 362,764 249,876 224,237

Purchased

Shares 2012 37,463,358, 2011 424,295, 2010 15,355,730 (2,266,195) (20,531) (830,713}
End of Year

Shares 2012 99,262,992, 2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 3 (65,590,509) $(3,687,478) $ (3,816,823)
Earmings Employed in the Business

Beginring of Year $20,907,362 $19,215,768 $17,342,694

Net sarmings 5,962,920 4,728,449 4,626,172

Cash dmdends declared on common shares

{per share — 2012 $1 67,2011 $1 82, 2010 S1 76) (2,649,866) {3.011,631) (2,731,584)
Efiect of common and treasury share transactions (69,420) (25,224) 21,514)
End of Year $24,150,996 $20,907.362 $19,215,768

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Beginning of Year $ (2,597,185} ${1,366,846) $ 854,074

Other comprehensive Income (loss) (996,493} {1,230,339) (2,220,920}
End of Year $ (3,593,678) ${2,587,185) $ (1.366,846)
Noncontrolling interests n Subsidianes

Beginning of Year $ 86312 $ 88329 $ 43,102

Noncontroling Interests shame of income,

business combinabions, net of distnbutions and share repurchases 5,859 2,017 45,227

End of Year 3 92,271 $ 86,312 $ 88,329

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statementis are an integral part of thus statement




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Pohcies

Nature of Business — Abbott's pnncipal business is the
discovery, development, manufacture and sale of a broad tine
of health care products

In Cctober 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, one in diversified medical products

and the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomphish
the separaton, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc for s
research-based pharmaceuticals business which consists primanty
of Abbott’s Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment On
January 1, 2013, Ahbott distnbuted all of the outstanding shares of
AbbVie Inc to Abbott’s shareholders As a resutt of the distnbution,
AbbVie 1s now an independent company trading under the symbol
"ABBV® Beginning n the first quarter of 2013, the histoncal results
of the research-based pharmaceuticals business wili be reflected in
Abbotl s consolidated finanaial statements as discontinued operations

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Due to the nature of its
operatons, Abbott 1s not subject to significant concentration nsks relat-
ing to customers, products or geographic locations, except that three
U S wholesalers accounted for 23 percent of trade recevables as of
December 31, 2012 and 2010 and 22 percent of trade receivables as
of December 31, 2011 In addition, governmental accounts in ltaly,
Spain, Greace and Portugal accounted for 18 percent, 23 percent, and
21 percent of tolal net trade recevables as of December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively Product warranties are not significant

Abbott has no matenal exposures to off-balance sheet arrangements,
no special purpase entities, nor actwities that Inclugde non-
exchange-traded contracts accounted for at farr value Abbott has
penodically entered into agreements in the ardinary course of busi-
ness, such as assignment of product nghts, with other companies
which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondanty hable for obliga-
tions that Abbott was previously primanly hable Since Abbott no
longer maintains a business relationship with the other partigs, Abbott
15 Unabla to develop an estmate of the maximum potential amount of
future payments, if any, under these obligations Based upon past
experience, the ikslihood of payments under these agreements s
remote Abbott penodically acguires a business or product righis in
which Abbott agrees to pay contingent consideration based on attain-
ing certan thresholds or based on the occurence of certan events

Bass of Consolidation and Change in Accounting Principle — Prior
1o January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidianes were consoll-
dated based on a fiscal year ended Novermnber 30 due to the time
needed to consolidate these subsidianes Effectve January 1, 2011,
the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of foreign
subsicdianes was eliminated and the year-end of foreign subsidianes
was changed to December 31 Abbott believes that the change in
accounting pninciple related to the ehmnation of the one month report-
ing lag I1s preferable because It resufls in more contemporaneous
reporting of the results of foreign subsidianes In accordance with
applicable accounting literature, a change in subsidianes' year-end I1s
treated as a change in accounting principle and requires retrospective
applcation The cumulaive effect of the change was an increase In
retasned earnings of $289 milhion as of January 1, 2009 and a corre-
sponding decrease n other long-term kabiliies The impact of the
change was not matenal to the results of operations for the previously
reported annual and internim penods after January 1 2009, and thus,
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those results have not been revisad A charge of $137 milion was
recorded to Other {income) expense, net in 2011 to recognize the
cumulatve immatenal Impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financial
statements been revised, net sales, operating earnings and net eam-
ings N 2010 would have decreased by $21 milhon, $195 milion and
$175 million, respectively

Use of Estimates — The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States and necessanly include amounts based on estimates
and assumptions by managemsnt Actual results could differ from
those amounts  Significant estimates inctude amounts for sales
rebates, income taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuation of intangible assets, Iiigation, dervative financral instruments,
and nventory and accounts recevable exposures

Revenue Recognition ~ Revenue from product sales s recognized
upon passage of title and nsk of loss to customers Provisions for
discounts, rebates and sales incentives ta customers, and returns
and other adjustments are provided for In the period the related sales
are recorded Sales incentives to customers are not matenal Histoncal
data 1s readlly avalable and reliable, and 1s used for estimating the
amount of the reduction in gross sales Revenue from the launch

of a new product, from an improved version of an existing preduct,

or for shipments in excess of a customer's normal requirements are
recorded when the condibions noted above are met In those situa-
tions, management records a returns raserve for such revenue, If
necessary In certain of Abbott's businesses, primanly within dragnos-
tics and medical optics, Abbott paricipates in seling arrangements
that include multiple defiverables (e g , instruments, reagents, proce-
dures, and service agreements) Under these arrangements, Abbott
recognizes revenue upon delivery of the product or performance of the
service and allocates the revenue based on the relaive selling price of
each deliverable, which 15 based pnmanty on vendor specific objective
evidence Sales of product nghts for marketable products are
recorded as revenue upon disposition of the nghts Revenue from
license of product nghts, or for performance of research or selling
actmities, 1s recorded over the pernods earned

income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effect
of differences between the tax bases of assets and llabilibes and ther
reported amounts in the financial statements at the enactad statutory
rate to be in effect when the taxes are paid 1 S income taxes are
provided on those earnings of foreign subsidianes which are intended
to be rermitted to the parert company Deferred income taxes are not
provided on undisinbuted earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign
subsidianes as working capital and plant and equipment Interest and
penalties on Income tax obhgations are included n taxes on income

Earrungs Per Share — Unvested restncted stock that contain non-for-
fertable nghts to dadends are treated as participating secunties and are
Included n the computation of earnings per share under the two-class
method Under the two-class method, net earnings are allocated
between common shares and participating secunties Net earnings allo-
cated to common shares in 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $5 917 billion,
$4 714 billon and $4 613 billon, respeciively

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuanally determined cost of pension and post-employment benefits
aver the service atinbubon penods of the employees Abbott must
develop iong-term assumptions, the most significant of which are the
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health care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected retum
on plan assets Differences between the expected long-term return on
plan assets and the actual return are amortized over a five-year penod
Actuanal losses and gains are amortized over the remaning service
attnbution penods of the employses under the comdor method

Fair Value Measurements — For assets and labilives that are
measured using quoted pnces In active markets, total far value 1s the
published market pnee per unit multiplied by the number of units held
without consideration of transaction casts Assets and liabilties that
are measured using signficant other obsearvable inputs are valued by
reference to similar assets or llabilties, adjusted for contract restne-
tions and other terms specific to that asset or lability For these tems,
a significant portion of far value 1s derved by reference to quoted
prces of smilar assels or habilities in active markets For all remamning
assets and abdities, farr value 1S denved using a farr value model, such
as a discounted cash flow model or Black-Scholes model Purchased
intangible assets are recorded at far value The fair value of significant
purchased intangible assets 1s based on independent apprasals
Abbott uses a discounted cash flow model to value intangible assets
The discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the
timing and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital,
terminal values and market partcipants [ntangible assets, goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at
least on a quarterly and annual basis, respectively

Share-Based Compensation — The value of stock options and
restricted stock awards and uruts are amortized over ther service
penod, which could be shorter than the vesting penod if an employee
1s retirement ehgible, with a charge to compensation expense

Litgation — Abbott accounts for Inigation losses in accordance with
FASB ASGC No 450, "Contingencies " Under ASC No 450, loss con-
tingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management's
best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made,

a minimum loss contingency amount 1s recorded Legal fees are
recorded as incurred

Cash, Cash Equivalents and investments — Cash equivaients consist
of bank time deposits and U S treasury bills with onginal matunties of
three months or less Investments in marketable equity secunties and
certain nvestments n debt securtes are classified as avalable-for-sale
and are recorded at far valua with any unrealized holding gains or
losses, net of tax, includad In Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss} Investments in equity secunties that are not traded on
public stock exchanges are recorded at cost Investments in other
debt securties are classified as held-to-maturity, as management

has both the mtent and ability 1o hold these secunties to matunty,

and are reported at cost, net of any unamortized premium or discount
Income relating to these securties 1s reported as interest income

Abbolt reviews the carrying value of Investments each quarter to
determine whether an other than temporary decline In market valug
exists Abbott considers factors affecting the investas, tactors affecting
tha industry the mvestee operates in and general equity market trends
Abbott considers the length of time an investment's market value has
been below carrying value and the near-term prospects for recovery to
carrying value When Abbott deterrmines that an other than temporary
decline has occurred, the Investment s written down with a charge

o Other iIncome) expense, net
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Trade Recevable Valuations — Accounts recevable are stated at thew
net realizable value The allowance aganst gross trade recevables
reflects the best estimate of probable losses inherent in the recevables
portfolic detarmined on the basis of histoncal expenence, specific
allowances for known troubled accounts and other currently avalable
Information Accounts recervable are charged off after all reasonable
means to collect the full amount (including liigation, whera appropnate)
have been exhausted

Inventonies — Inventonas ara stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out basis) or market Cost includes matenal and conversion costs

Property and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Iives of the
assets The following {able shows estimated useful lives of property
and equipmant

Classification Estimated Usaful Lives
Buildings 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)
Equipment 3 1o 20 years (average 11 years)

Froduct Liability — Abbott accrues for product llability claims,

on an undiscounted basis, when it s probable that a lability has been
incurred and the amount of the lability can be reasonably estmated
based on existing information The habilities are adjusted quarterly as
additional information becomes avallable Recevables for insurance
racovenes for product liability clams are recorded as assets, on an
undiscounted basis, when it 1S probable that a recovery will be real-
zed Product liability losses are seif-insured

Research and Development Costs — Internal research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred Clinical trial costs incurred by
third parties are expensed as the contracted work i1s performed VWhere
contingent milestone payments are due to third parties under research
and development arrangements, the milestone payment oblgations
are expensed when the milestone results are achieved

Acquired In Process and Collaborations Research and Development
fPR&D} — The intial costs of nghts to IPR&D projects obtained in an
asset acquisition are expensed as IPR&D unlass the project has an
alternatwe future use These costs include titial payments incurred
pnor to regulatory approval In connection wath research and develop-
ment collaboration agreements that provide nghts to develop,
manufacture, market and/or sell pharmaceutical products The fair
value of IPR&D projects acquired in a business combination are
capitalized and accounted for as indefimte-ived intangible assets

Note 2 — Supplemental Financial Information

{dlollars in mifitons)

Long term Investments 2012 2011 2010
Equrty secunties £213 317 $240
Other 61 61 62
Total 5274 378 $302

The loss on the extinguishment of debt of $1 35 bilion relates to the
earty redemption of $7 7 bilon of long-term notes The loss consists
of the premium paid on the notes and the wnte off of deferred financ-
Ing costs fotaling $1 83 billlon and was partally offset by a gan of
$479 milhon related to the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to
a portion of the debt Other (ncome) expense, net, for 2012 includes
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income of approximately $60 mition from the resolution of a cantrac-
tual agreernent and a loss of approximately $62 million for the
impairment of certain equity secunties As discussed in Note 1, OCther
{income) expensa, net, for 2011 includes a charge of $137 million to
recognize the cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 relat-
ing to the change in year end for foreign subsidianes In addition,
Other {income) expense, net, for 2011 includes $56 million of far valus
adjusiments and accretion in the contingant consideration related to
the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceutical business Other (income)
axpense, net, for 2012, 2011 arnd 2010 also inciudes ongoing con-
tractual payrments from Takeda associated wath the conclusion of the
TAP joint venture

(doflars i milons)

Other Accrued Liabilities 2012 2011 2010
Accrued rebates payable

10 government agencies $1020 $1040 $ 900
Accrued other rebates (a) 1,079 1030 862
All other (b) 4 689 5776 4,253
Total 36,788 $7.855 $6 015

(@ Accrued wholesaler chargahack rebates of $300 $230 and $216 at December 31 2012
2011 andd 2010 réspacinvely are netied in trade recevables because Abbott's customers
are mvoiced at a higher catalog pnce but only renst to Abbott ther contract pace lor the
products The 2011 balances have been revised to reflect a reclassidfication of certan
amouwnts fromm Accroed other rebates 1o All other

2011 nciuaies $1 500 related to A previously disciosed govemmant irvesligabon and
$400 for acquired In process resaarch and development 2012 2011 and 2010 ncludes
AcouEsLon Consderaton payable of $400 related o the acqustion of Pramal Healthcare
Limited’s Healthcara Solutions busness

i

{doltars in mitions)

Post-employment Oblgations and

Other Long term Liabiiies 2012 2011 2010
Definad benefit pansion plans and

post-employment medical and

dentat plans for significant plans $4 557 $3 301 $2,425
Deferred ncome taxes 710 703 1,112
All other [c) 3789 4227 4,486
Total $9 056 $8 231 $8,023

e 2012 2031 and 2010 nciudas acquistion consideration payabe of $385 $770 and
$1 150 respecively related 10 the acquistion of Pvamal Heatthcare Limkted's Healthcare
Soksions busness

The judgment entered by the U S Distnct Court for the Eastemn Distnct
of Texas against Abbott in its Eigation with New York Univarsity and
Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secure the judgment In the event that
its appeal to the Federal Circunt court was unsuccassful in overturming
the distnct court’s decision In the first quarter of 2010, Abbott depos-
ited $1 87 bilhon with an escrow agent and considered these assets to
be restncted On February 23, 2011, the Federal Circuit reversad

the distnct court s final jJudgment and found Centocor’s patent rwalid
On Apnl 25, 2011 Centocor petihoned the Federal Circuit to rehear
and reconsider the decision In June 2011 the Federal Circuit denied
Centocor’s petition and the restnctions on the funds were Ifted
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Note 3 — Financial Instruments, Denvatives and Fair Value
Measures

Certain Abbott foreign subsidianes enter Into foreign cumency forward
exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases by those
subsidianes whose functional currencies are not the U S dollar
Thasa contracts, totaling $1 8 billion at December 31, 2012 and 2011
and $1 3 bilhon at December 31, 2010 are designated as cash flow
hedges of the vanability of the cash flows due to changes in foreign
exchange rates and are recorded at far value Accumudated gans
and losses as of December 31, 2012 will be incluged in Cost of
products sold at the tme the products are sold, generally through
the next twelve months The amount of hedge ineflectveness was
not significant In 2012, 2011 and 2010

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts

to manage currency exposures for foreign cunrency denominated
third-party trade payables and recewables, and for intercompany
loans and trade accounts payable where the recewvable or payable I1s
denominated in a currancy other than the functional currency of the
entity For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbott to sell or
buy foreign currencias, pnmarily European currencies and Japanese
yen, n exchange for prmanty U S dollars and other European
currencies For intercompany and trade payables and recevables,
the currency exposures are pnimarnly the U S dollar, European curren-
cies and Japanese yan At December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Abbott held $18 2 bulion, $15 7 billion and $10 8 bilicn, respactvaly,
of such forexgn currancy forward exchange contracts

Abbott has designated foreign denominated short-ierm debt as a
hedge of the net Investment in a foreign subsidiary of approximately
$615 mition, $680 milien and $650 mullion as of December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectvely Accordingly, changes in the far value

of this debt due {0 changes in exchange rates are recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive ncome (foss), net of tax

Abbott i1s a party to interest rate hedge contracts totaling $9 5 bilon,
$6 8 bilion and $7 3 bilion at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, to manage its exposure to changes in the fair value of
fixed-rale debt These contracts are designated as far value hedges
of the vanability of the farr value of fixed-rate debt due to changes in
the long term benchmark interest rates The effect of the hedge 1s to
change a fixed-rate interest obligation to a vanable rate for that portion
of the debt Abbott records the contracts at fair value and adjusts
the carrying amount of the fixed-rate debt by an ofiseting amount
No hedge ineffectivenass was recorded in income in 2012, 2011 and
2010 for these hedges

Gross unrealzed holding gans on available-for-sale equity secunties
totaled $51 million, $64 milkon and $40 milton at December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively
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The followang table summanzes the amounts and location of certain

dervative financia! instruments as of December 31

{doftars it mitions) Fair Value — Assets Far Value — Liabilities

2010 Balance Shest Caption 2012 2011 2010 Balance Sheet Caption
Interest rate swaps designated $138 Deferred income $ 80 & — $ 36 Post-employment
as far value hedges taxes and other assets cbligations and other

long term kabtites

Foresgn currency forward
exchange contracts —
Hedging instruments 16 Other prepald 1 2 10 Orher accrued
Others not designated as hedges 109 expenses and recevables 135 179 120 liabilibes
Debt designated as a hedge of net - na 615 680 650 Short-term borrowings
investmeant in a foreign subsidiary

$263 $841 $861 $816

The following table sumrmanzes the actrty for foreign cumency
forward exchange contracts destgnated as cash flow hedges, debt
designated as a hedge of net investment in a foreign subsidiary

and the amounts and location of ncome {expense} and gain {oss)
reclassriied Into Income and for certain other denvative financial
instruments The amount of hedge ineffectivenass was not significant
In 2012, 2011 and 2010 for these haedges

Gain (loss) Recognized in Other Income (expense) and Gan (loss)

{dollars in mithans) Comprehensive Income {loss) Reclassified inte Income
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 income Statement Caption

Foresgn currency forward exchanga $ 2 $ 65 $170 3138 $(26) % 63 Cost of products soid
contracts designated as cash flow hedges
Debt designated as a hedge of 65 (30) (75) - - — n/a
net vestment in a foreign subsichary
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hadges n/a na n/a 62 488 248 Interest expense
Foresgn currency forward exchange na nva na 108 {11) 155 Net foreign exchange

contragts not designated as hedges

The nterest rate swaps are designated as far value hedges of the
vanability of the far vahue of fixed-rate debt due to changes in the
long-tenn benchmark interest rates The hedged debt 1s marked
to market, offsetting the effect of marking the interest rate swaps

to market

{gawn) loss

The carrying valuss and fair values of certain financial instruments as
of December 31 are shown In the table below The carrying values of
all other financial Instruments approximate ther estimated farr values
The counterparties to financial instruments consist of setect major
ternational financial institutions  Abbott does not expect any losses
from nonperformance by these counterparties

fdoltars i mithons) 2012 2011 2010

Carmng Fawr Carmying Fair Canying Fair

Value Vatue Value Valua Value Valua

Long term invastmeant Secunties
Equrty secunties $ 213 § 213 $ W7 5 a7 $ 240 $ 240
Cther 61 56 61 42 62 43
Total Long term Debt {18 394) (19 588} {13,067) {15.129) {14,568) (15 723)
Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts
Recenable postion 120 120 280 280 125 125
(Payabie) postion (146) (146} (184 {181) (130) (130)
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts
Recenable position 185 185 588 598 146 146
(Payable) positon (80) (80} - - (@8) 38)
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The following lable sumimanzes the bases used to measure
certain assets and labilies at far value on a recumng basis
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in tha balance sheet
{dolfars in miions) Basis of Falr Valug Measurement

Quistanding Quoted Prices m Signuficant Other Sgnificart
December 31 2012 Balances Active Markets Observatie Inputs Unohservable Inputs
Equity secunties $ 786 76 $ - $ —
Interest rate swap financial instruments 185 - 185 -
Foresgn currency forward exchange contracts 120 - 120 -
Total Assets $ 381 76 $ 305 § -
Far value of hedged long term debt $ 9,632 $— $9 632 5 —
Interest rate swap financial instruments 80 - 80 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 146 - 146 -
Ceontingent consideration related to business comtanations 323 — — 323
Total Liabilities $10181 $— $9,858 $323
December 31, 2011
Equity secuntes $ 63 %93 5 - 5 -
Interest rate swap financial instruments 598 - 598 -
Foregn cumency forward exchange contracts 280 — 280 -
Total Assets $ 9an $93 $ 878 £ —
Fanr value of hedged long term debt $ 7,427 $— $7.427 $ —
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 181 - 181 -
Contingent consideration related to business combxnations 423 - — 423
Total biabilties § 803 $— $7,608 $423
December 31 2010
Equity secunties $ 75 $75 8 - 5 -
Interest rate swap financial nstruments 146 - 146 —
Foresgn currency forward exchange contracts 125 — 125 -
Total Assets $ 346 $75 $ 271 3 —
Fair value of hedged long term debt $ 7.444 $ 87 444 3 —
Interest rate swap financial Instruments 36 - 36 -
Foreign curency forward exchange contracts 130 - 130 -
Contingent consideration related to business combinations 365 - — 365
Total Liabilites $ 7975 $— $7 610 $365

The far value of the debt was determmned based on the face value

of the debt adjusted for the far value of the interest rate swaps, which
15 based on a discounted cash flow analysis The far value of the
contingent consideration was determined based on an independent
appraisal adjusted for the time value of money, exchange and other

changes in far value
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Note 4 — Past-Employment Benefits

Retirement plans consist of defined benefit, defined contnbution and medical and dental plans Information for Abbott’s major defined benefit ptans

and post-employment medical and dental benefit plans 1s as follows

{dolfars m mithons) Defined Benefit Plans Medical and Dental Plans

2012 201 2010 2012 2011 2010
Projected benefit obligatons, January 1 $ 8963 %8606 $6852 $ 1.657 $1,673 $1,705
Servica cost — benefits eamned duning the year 376 332 288 61 55 60
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 447 446 421 81 88 101
Losses (gains), pomanty changes in discount retes plan dasign changes,
law changes and differences between actual and estrmated health care costs 1412 608 565 148 {104) {153)
Benefits paid (302) (294) (289) 63} {62) (74)
Acquisition of Solvay's phammaceuticals business - - 1045 — - 28
Sattlement —_ (776) — — - —
Other primanly foresgn currency ranslation 108 41 (276) 5 7 B
Projected hensfit obligations, Decernber 31 $11,004 $ 8,963 $8608 $1889 $1657 $1,673
Plans assets at far value January 1 $ 6961 $7451 $5.812 & 389 $ 396 § 3m
Actual return on plans’ assets 878 29 782 48 5 55
Company contnbiutions 379 394 525 40 40 74
Benefits pad (302) (294) (289) {60 52) (74)
Acquistion of Solvay's phammaceutcals business - - 763 - — -
Sattlement — (776) — - - -
QOther, pnmanly foreign currency translation 33 157 (142) - - —
Plans assets at far value December 31 $ 7949 $ 6,961 $7.451 5 a7 $ 389 $ 396
Projected benefit obligations
greater than plans assets, December 31 $ {3 055) $(2 002) $(1 155) $(1 472) $(1 268) {1 277}
Long term assets $ 69 3 66 3 27 5 - 5 - $ -
Short term babilities {39) (3s) (34) - - -
Long term habiities (3 085) {2 033) {1,148} (1,472) {1,268) {1277)
Net kabifity $ {3 055) ${2 002) 31 155) $(1.472) {1,268} $(1,277)
Amounts Recognzed n Accurmulated Other Comprehensive Income {oss)
Actuanal fosses net $ 4742 $3822 $2878 $ 701 $ 601 $ 713
Pnor service cost {credits) 71 25 30 {322) (364) {408}
Total $ 4813 $3 847 $ 2,909 % 379 $ 237 $ 307

The projected benefit obligations tor non-U S defined benefit plans was
$3 1 billon, $2 3 bilkon and $3 O billon at December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectvely The accumulated benefit obligations for all
defined benefit plans was $9 4 bilon, $7 7 billion and $7 5 bilion at
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 raspectivaly For plans where the
accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan assets at Decernber 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, the aggregate accumutated benefit obligations
were $7 9 bilion, $6 7 bilion and $2 0 bilion, respectively, the projected
benefit obligations were $9 3 billon, $7 9 billon and $2 2 bilkon, respec-
tively, and the aggregate plan assets were $6 2 bilion, $5 8 bilior and
$1 1 bdon, respectvely

In connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott will transfer certain labililies and assets of both defined

(doflars i mufhons)

Defined Benefit Plans

benefit pension plans and medical and dental plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated benefit cbligations, projected benefit
obligations, far value of assets and deferred gains and losses to be
assurned by AbbVie are $3 9 hilion, $4 5 bilion, $3 1 billion and

$1 9 billon, respectively, for defined banefil plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated bensfit obhgations and deferred gains and
losses to be assumed by AbbVie are $501 millon and $114 million,
respactively, for medical angt dental plans

Dunng 2011, $776 million of assets and kabilites of a plan sponsored
by Abbott Heafthcare BV, a Dutch subsidiary of Abbott Laboratones,
were Irravocably transferred to a Dutch insurance company in full
seltlernent of that plan The assets were used (o purchase an annuity
contract to futfill the plan's obligations

Medical and Dental Plans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Servica cost — benefits earned during the year $376 $332 $ 288 $ 61 $ 55 $ 60
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 447 446 421 81 88 101
Expected return on plans assels BN {608) (571} (33} (34) (31)
Settlement - 40 - - — -
Amorhzation of actuanal losses 235 163 138 34 38 38
Amortization of pror servica cost {cradits) 4 4 4 ©2) (42} @2
Total cost $ 451 $377 $278 $101 $105 $148
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Cther comprehensive income {loss) for 2012 includes amortzation of
actuanal losses and pnor service cost of $235 millon and $4 milion,
respectively, and net actuanal losses of $1 2 bilion for defined benefit
plans and amertzation of actuanal losses and pnor service credits of
$34 milion and $42 million, respectively, and net actuanatl ksses of
$134 milion for medical and dental ptans Other comprehensive incoms
{loss) for 2011 includes amortization of actuanal losses and prior sevice
cost of $163 mibon and $4 milion, respectvely, and net actuanal losses
of $1 1 billon tar defined banefit plans and amortzation of actuanal
losses and prior service credits of $38 milion and $42 million, respec-
tively, and net actuanal gains of $66 milion for medical and dental plans
Other comprehensive incorme (oss) for 2010 includas amortization of
actuanal losses and pnor service cost of $136 mifion and $4 million,
respectively, and net actuanal losses of $305 million for defined benafit
plans and amortization of actuanal losses and pnor service credits of
$38 mifion and $22 milion, respectively, and net actuanal gains of

$177 mulhon for medical and dental plans The pratax amount of actuar-
121 losses and pnor senace cost (credits) mcuded n Accumulated other
comprehansive Income (loss) at December 31, 2012 that i1s expected

to be recogrized in the net penodic benefit cost N 2013 1s $175 milhon
and $5 mflion, respectvely, for defined benefit pension plans and

$25 milkon and ${23) milkon, respectvely, for medical and dental plans

The weighted average assumptions used 1o determine benefit
obhgations for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans
are as follows

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4 3% 50% 5 4%
Expected aggregata average long term
change in compensation 53% 53% 51%

The weighted average assumptions used 1o determine the net cost for
defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are as foiows

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 50% 54% 58%
Expected retum on plan assels 80% 78% 7 8%
Expected aggregate average
long term change in compensation 53% 51% 49%

The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental ptans
at December 31 were as follows

2012 2011 2010
Health care cost trend rate
assumed for the next year 7% 7% 7%
Rate that tha cost trend rate
graduafly declines to 5% 5% 5%
Yoar that rate reaches the
assumed ultimate rate 2019 2019 2016

The discount rates used to measure liabities were determined based
on high-qualtty fixed income secunties that match the duration of the
expected retires benefits The healih care cost trend rates represent
Abbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health care
benefits and 1s a forward projection of health care costs as of the
measurement date A one-percentage pomnt increasef{decrease) in the
assumed health cane cost trend rate would increase/{decrease) the
accunulated post-employment benefit obligations as of December 31,
2012, by $274 millon/$(222) million, and the total of the service and
interest cost components of net post-employment health care cost for
the year then ended by approximately $24 milliorv${19) million
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The following tablg summanzes the bases used to measure defined
benefit plans’ assets at far value

fdollars in mithons) Basss of Fair Value Measurament
Quoted  Significant
Prices in Other  Sgnficant
Outstanding Actve  QObservable Unobservable
December 31, 2012 Balances Marketls Inputs Inputs
Equties
US large cap (a) $173 $1,731 3 - $ -
USs mid cap (b) 451 140 a1 -
International () 1,558 677 881 -
Fixed income securities
U5 government
secunties (d) 843 545 298 -
Corporate debt
instruments {e) 704 427 277 —
Non-U S government
secunties (f) 373 m 272 —
Cther (q) 23 18 5 —
Absolute return funds (h) 1941 425 825 691
Commodities (i} 208 9 161 38
Other () 107 104 - 3
$7 949 $4177 $3 040 $732
December 31 2011
Equities
U 8 large cap (a) $1,470 $1,449 s 21 5 -
US mid cap (b} 423 152 271 -
international {c) 1,217 485 732 —
Fixed income secunties
U S government
securities (d) 857 370 487 -
Corporata debt
nstruments {e) 527 223 304 -
Non-U S government
secunties (f) 450 228 222 -
Other {g) 45 21 24 -
Absotute return funds (h) 1,709 334 751 524
Commodities (i) 183 8 165 10
Cther () 80 78 — 2
$6,961 $3 348 $2977 $636
December 31, 2010
Equities
US largs cap (a) $1,523 $1499 $ 24 $ -
US md cap [b) 437 162 275 -
Intemational {c) 1552 758 794 -
Fixed ncome secunties
U S government
secunties (d) 793 355 438 -
Corporate gebt
mnstrumenis (e) 524 237 286 1
Non-U S government
securties (f} 758 172 586 -
Other (g} 40 20 19 1
Absoluta return funds {h) 1,428 258 582 586
Commodities () 242 5 234 3
Other ) 156 156 — -
$7.451 $3 622 $3,238 3591
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{a) A mocof inckex funds that track the S&P 500 (50 percent nn 2012 and 45 percant m 2011
and 2010) and separate actvely managed equity accounts that are benchmarked to the
Russel 1000 {50 percent in 2012 and 55 parcent n 2011 and 2010}

®) A mx ol mdex funds (75 percent) and separete actively managed equsty 20counts
(25 parcent) that track or &ne benchmarked to the S&P 400 medcap ndax

{© Promariy separate actively managed pooled svestment accounts that are benchmarked
1o tha MSCI and MSCH emergng market indices

[d)  Wndex funds not activaly managed (50 percant in 2012 and 45 parcent in 2011 and 2010
and separate actively managed accounts {50 percent In 2012 and 55 percent n 2011
and 2010}

{el Index funds not actvely managed (20 percent ki 2012 40 percent n 2011 and 15 percent
N 2010) and separate actively managed accounts (90 percent m 2012 60 percent n 2011
and 85 percent in 2010}

i Promariy United Kingdom  Japan and (nsh governenant issuad boneds
(@ Pnmarly mortgage backed secuntes

(N Pomariy funds mvested by managers that hove a giobal mandate with the fexbiity to
allocate capital broadly across a wide range of asset classes and strategies ncluding
bul not kmded to equities fixed ncome commodites nterest rate futures currencias
and other 5eCunlvs o outperform an agreed upon benchmark with specific retun and
volatity targets

i Prnmanly nvestments in bquid commodity future contracts and prvata energy funds

@ Prmanly cash andd cash equivalents

Equities that are valued using quoted pnces are valued at the
published market pnces Equites in a common collective trust ora
registered investment company that are valued using significant other
observable Inputs are valued at tha net asset vatue (NAV) provided by
the fund administrator The WAV 1s based on the valus of the underly-
Ing assets owned by the fund menus its labiities Fixed income
securtties that are valued using significant other observable nputs
are valued at pnces cblained from independent financial serice
indusiry-recognized vendors Absolute return funds and commadies
are valued at the NAV prowvided by the fund administrator Private
energy funds are valued at the NAV provided by the partnarship on a
one-guarter lag adjusted for known cash flows and significant events
through the reporting date

The following table summanzes the change in the value of assets that
are rmeasured using significant unobservable inputs

{doilars in matons) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 $636 $501 $530
Transfers in {out of) from other categones 2 (4} {37)
Actual return on plan assats

Assets on hand at year end 59 {14) a1

Assats sold dunng the year (4) (1) (2)
Purchases sales and seftlements, net 39 61 58
December 31 $732 $636 $501

Tha investment mix of equity secunties, fixed income and other asset
allocation strategies 15 based upon achieving a desired return, balanc-
ing hugher return, more volatle equity securtties, and lower return,

less volatile fixed ncome secunties Investment allocatons are made
across a range of markets, industry sectors, caprtalzation sizes,

and in the case of fixed income sacunties, matuntes and credit qualty
The plans do not directly hold any secunties of Abbott There are no
known significant concentrations of nsk in the plans’ assets Abbott’s
medical and dental plans’ assets are invested N a similar mix as the
pension plan assels

The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown above is based on
management's expectations of long-term average rates of return to be
achieved by the underlying investment portfolios In establishing this '
assumption, management considers histoncal and expected returns

tor the asset classes in which the plans are investaed, as well as current

economic and capttal market condtions

Abbott funds ts domestic pension plans according to IRS funding
limitations Internaticnal pension plans are funded according to similar
regulations Abbott funded $379 million in 2012, $394 mition m 2011
and $625 milion in 2010 to defined pension plans Abbott expects
pension funding for its man domestic pension plan of $170 mulon n
2013 The projected decrease reflects the separation of AbbVie from
Abbott and the transfer of certain assets and abikties 1o AbbVia

Total benefit payments expected to be pawd to participants, gmng
effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott, which includes
payments funded from company assets as well as pad from the
plans, are as follows

Defined Medical and
(doilars in milions) Banefit Plans Dental Plans
2013 $ 173 $ 78
2014 183 80
2015 197 83
20186 21 ar
2017 224 a0
2018 to 2022 1,367 510

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan s the principal defined contnbution
ptan Abbott’s contnbutions to this plan were $150 milhon in 2012,
$151 milion in 2011 and $147 milkon n 2010

Abbott prowides certain other post-employment benefits, pnmanty !
salary continuation plans, to qualifying domestic employees, and |
accrues for the related cost over the service Ives of the employees

Note 5 — Taxes on Earnings

Taxes on earnings reflect the annual eflectiva rates, including charges
for nterest and penalties Deferred iIncome taxes reflect the tax conse-
quences on future years of differences between the tax bases of assets
and labiies and ther financial reporting amounts  The $620 mifhon
domestic loss betore taxes in 2012 includes Abbott s $1 35 billion net
loss on the earty extinguishment of debt and approximately $395 milion
of separation related expenses U S income 1axes are provided on
those earnings of foreign subsidianes which are intended to be remitted
to tha parent company Abbott does not record deferred income laxes
on eamengs reinvested indefinitaty In foreign subsidiznes  Undistnbuted
earmngs reinvestad indefintely i forexgn subsidianes as working capital
and plant and equipment aggregated $40 0 billon a1 December 31,
2012 It 1s not prachcable to determine the amount of deferred income
taxes not provided on these earnings In the U S, Abbott's federal
incame tax returns through 2009 are setited except for one tem, and
the income tax retums for years after 2009 are open Thers are nuMer-
ous other mcome tax junsdictions for which tax returns are not yet
sattled, none of which are ndmidually significant Reserves for interest
and penatties are not significant
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Earnings befare taxes, and the related provisions for taxes on
eamings, wora as follows

{dokiars m mihons)

Eamings Bafore Taxes 2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ (B20) & 364 $ (275}
Foregn 5883 4,835 5,988
Total $6,263 $5189 §5713
Taxes on Eamings 2012 2011 2010
Curent

Domestic 3 198 & (586) $ 1,462
Foreign 1230 1,187 835
Total current 1428 601 2,297
Deterved

Domestic {483} 162 {1,068
Foreign (645) {203 (142
Total defered (1,128) {131) {1210}
Total $ 300 $ 470 $ 1,087

Difterences between the effective ncome taxrate and the U S
statutory tax rate were as follows

2012 201 2010
Statutory tax rate on sarmngs 350% 35 0% 35 0%
Benefit of lower foreign tax rates
and tax exemptions (24 9) 229) (19 4)
Resolution of certain tax positions
pertainng to pnor years B85 112 -
Effect of non deductible itigaton reserve 06 g1 -
State taxes, net of federal benefit 01 (X 04
All other net 05 {0 6) 30
Effectve tax rate on earnings 48% 9 0% 19 0%

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2014, total deferred {ax assels
were $7 4 bilion, $6 3 bilion and $6 1 billion, raspectively, and total
deferred tax lablties were $2 6 bilbon, $2 9 billion and $3 O billon,
respectively Abbott has incurred losses in a foregn junsdiction where
realization of the future economic benefit I1s so remote that the benefit
1s not reflected as a deferred tax asset Valuation allowances for
recorded deferred tax assets were not significant The tax effect of
the differences that give nise to delerred tax assets and labilities
were as follows

{dollars n miliions) 2012 2011 2010
Gompensaton and employea benefits $1936 $ 1,858 %1327
Trade recewvable reserves 557 482 525
Inventory reserves 211 212 293
Deferred intercompany profit 1,095 711 255
State incoma taxes 197 227 233
Depraciation 75) {164) {64)

Acquired in process research and
development and other accruals and

resarves not cumently deductible 3,278 2 BBG 34

Cther prmarily the axcess of book

basts over tax basis of ntangible assats {2,447) (2 638) (2,905)
Total 4752 $ 3386 $3065
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The following table summanzes the gross amounts of unrecognzed
tax benefits without regard to reduction in tax babilities or addiions to
deferred tax assets and llabiities if such unrecognized tax benefits
were settled

{dolars in mitkons} 2012 2011 2010
January 1 52123 $2 724 2172
Increase dua to cument year 1ax positons 673 588 835
Increase due to prior year tax positions 62 282 171
Decreasa due to pnor yaar tax positions 438) (824) 94)
Settlements {163) 847} (160}
December 31 $2 257 $2123 $2,724

The total armount of unrecognized tax benefits that, f recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate 15 approximately $2 0 bilion Abbott
believes that it 18 reascnably possible that the recorded amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by $550 milion to $650 million,
including cash adjustments, within the next twalve months as a result of
concluding vanous domestic and miernational tax matters

Note 6 — Segment and Geographic Area Information

Abbott’s pnncipal business 15 the discovery, development, manufaciure
and sale of a broad line of health cara products Abbott s products are
generally sold directly to retatlers, wholesalers, hospitals, health care
facities, laboratones, physicians' offices and government agencies
throughaut tha workd Effective January 1, 2312, certain internatwonal
gperations were transferred from the Establshed Pharmaceutical
Products segment to the Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment
The segment information below has been adjusted to reflect this reorga-
nization Abbott's reportable segments are as follows

Propnetary Pharmaceutical Froducts —Worldwide sales of a broad hne
of proprietary pharmaceutical products

Estabhished Pharmaceutical Products —International sales of a broad
line of branded genenc pharmaceutical products

Nutritronal Products — Worcdhwide sales of a broad ine of adult and
pediatnc nutntional products

Diagriostic Products —Worldwide sales of diagnastic systems and
tasts for blood banks, haspials, cammercal laboratonas and attet-
nate-care testing sites For segment reporting purposes, the Core
Laboratones Diagnostics, Molecular Diagnostics, Point of Care and
s diagnoshc dmvisions are aggregated and reported as the Diagnostic
Products segment

Vascular Products —Worldwide sales of coronary, endovascular,
structural heart, vessel closure and other medical device products

Non-reportable segments include the Diabetes Care and Medical
Optics segmants

Abbotl's underlying accounting records are maintaned on a legal entity
basis for government and public reporting requirements Segment
disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with intemal man-
agement reporting Intersegment transfers of inventory are recorded at
standard cost and are not a measure of segment operating earnings
The cost of some corporate functions and the cost of certain
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employee benefits are charged to segments at predetermined rates
that approximate cost Remamning costs, f any, are not allocated to
sagments For acquisitions pnor to 2006, substantially all intangible
assets and related amortization are not allocated to segments In addi-
tion, no intangible assets or refated amortization are allocated to the

Established Pharmaceutical Products segment The following segment
information has been prepared In accordance with the mternal
accounting policies of Abbott, as descnbed above, and are not pre-
santed In accordance with generally accepted accounting panciples
appled to the consolidated financial statements

Net Salss to Operating Depreciation Additions to

{doliars i miflions) External Customers (g) Earnings {a} and Amortization Long term Assets Total Assets

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2000 2012 2011 2010
Proprietary
Pharmaceuticals $18,012 $17,080 315389 $ 79485 7202 $65092 $ 622 % 638 $ 553 $ 256 § 168 $2,779 $12,026 $10974 $11,421
Established
Pharmaceuticals () 5121 5355 4,481 1237 1254 938 156 169 148 237 183 2,804 5704 6986 6,730
Nutntionats 6471 6006 5532 1019 797 777 181 183 177 458 205 163 3583 3241 3244
Dagnostes 4,292 4,128 3,794 804 766 559 315 339 244 349 409 319 3,807 3429 3,462
Vascular 3,671 3333 3,184 902 880 810 185 233 252 59 148 528 5301 5272 5,380
Total Reportable
Segments 36,967 35000 32,370 $11910$100999 %9776 51,470 $1,563 $1,374 $1,369 $1 113 $6,593 $30,521 $28,902 $30,247

Cther 2907 2,951 2,797
Neat Sales $39,874 $38,851 $35,167

{a) Nat sales and aperatng aarmings were uniavoratly affected by tha relatvety stronger U.S dollar n 2012 and were favarably aftected by tha relatevely weaker U S dofar 2011 and 2010
{t} Addions to long term assets s 2010 for the Estabished Phamaceutica) Products segment include goodwill of $2 767

{doflars in mifkons) 2012 2011 2010
Total Reportable Segment

Operatng Earnings $11910 $10999 $9776

Corporata functions and

benafit plans costs 651) (529) (558)
Non-reportable segments 335 278 139

Nat interest expense (513) (445) (448}
Net loss on extinguishment of debt {1 351) — —

Acquired in-process and

collaborations research

and development (288} 673) {313
Share based compensation 433) (383) (387)
Qther, net () {2,746) {4,046) (2 496)
Consotidated Eamings Before Taxes $ 6263 $ 5199 35713

Net Sales to

{doilars in milfions) External Gustomers {d] Long-term Assets

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
United States $16 784 $16014 $15194 $15244 $15867 $16 769
Japan 2441 2342 2,025 1,169 1,225 1,172
Germany 1740 1759 13846 6173 5809 5950
The Netheriands 1883 2108 200 532 462 312
ltaly 1127 1189 1144 222 229 242
Canacla 1253 1098 1036 352 237 224
France 1,167 1,297 1216 220 214 87
Span 942 1063 1,086 314 293 201
United Kingdom 1,048 a71 888 1345 1,273 1,272
Incha 033 931 501 3467 3160 3790
All Other Countnes 10,556 10,079 8,250 6874 7,633 B.146

fc) Other nat for 2011 nchudes a charge of $1 509 related 1o a previously draciosed
govenment nvestigation Other nat for 2012 2011 and 2010 ncludes charges of
$1 308 $402 and $681 respectvely for separation related costs m 2012 and for cost

dl n and aieg

{dollars in mulhons) 2012 2011 2010
Total Reportable Segment Assets $30,521 $29,902 $30 247
Cash, mvestments and restncted funds 15,448 8476 7 626
Current deferred income taxes 2986 2,701 3,076
Non reportable segments 4413 4,173 5,385
All other net primarty goodwill and

nizngible assets not allocated

{0 reportable segments 13,867 15 025 14 240
Total Asgets $67 235 $60 277 $60 574

Cansolidated $30874 $38851 $35.167 $35812 $36 508 338,256

{d) Sales by country are based on the country that sold the product
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Note 7 — Liigation and Environmental Matters

Abbott has been identified as a potentially responsible party for
invastigation and cleanup costs at a humber of locations in the Unted
States and Puerto Rico under federal and state remediation laws and
1S Investigating potential contamination at a number of company-
owned focations Abbott has recorded an estimated cleanup cost for
each site for which management believes Abbott has a probable loss
exposure No indwidual site cleanup exposure 1s expected to exceed
$4 mulion, and the aggregate cleanup exposure ts not expected to
excesd $15 million

There are a number of patert disputes with third parties who claim
Abbott's products infinge therr patents On February 21, 2012, the
United States Supreme Court denied Centocor Inc s and New York
University's petition to review a February 2011 Federal Girount Court
of Appeals decision raversing a $1 67 billion judgment in favor of
Centocor and New York University on a patent they clamed Abbott's
HUMIRA infnnged This decision concludes the case

The United States Department of Justice, through the United States
Attorney for the Western District of Virginea, and varous state
Attomeys General Investigated Abbott's sales and marketing activities
for Depakote The government sought to determne whether any

of these actwities violated cml and/or cnminal laws, Including the
Federal False Clams Act, the Food, Drug and Cosmelic Act, and the
Anti-Kickback Statute In connection with Medicara and/or Medicaud
reimbursement to third parties The state Attorneys General offices
sought to detenmine whether any of these aclmties wolated vanous
state laws, Including state consumer fraud/protection statutes

Abbott recorded charges of $1 5 billion in the thurd quarter of 2011
and $100 millon in the first quarter of 2012 related to ¢wl and cnminal
clams ansing from this matter in May 2012, Abbott reached resclution
of all Depakote-retated federal claims, Medicaid-related claims with

49 states and the Distnct of Columbia, and consumer protaction
clams with 45 states and the Distnct of Columbia In 2012, Abbott
paid approximately $1 6 billion for the setilerment The payments were
matenal 1o Abbott's cash flows In 2012

Abbott estimates the range of possible loss for its legal procesedings
and envirormental exposuras to be from approxmately $70 milion
to $100 million The recorded acenual balance at December 31, 2012
for these proceedings and exposures was approximatsely $80 mitfion
This accrual represents management's best estimate of probable loss,
as defined by FASB ASC No 450, "Contingencies * Within the next
year, legal proceedings may occur that may result in a change n the
estimated loss accrued by Abbott While it 15 not feasible 1o predict
the outcome of all such proceedings and exposures with cartamnty,
management behieves that therr ultmate disposition should not have
a matenal adversa effect on Abbott’s financtal position, cash fiows,
or resutts of operations
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Note 8 — Incentive Stock Program

The 2009 Incentive Stock Program authonzes the granting of
nonqualfied stock oplions, replacement stock options, restncted
stock awards, restneted stock units, performance awards, foreign
benefits and other share based awards Stock options, replacement
stock options and restncted stock awards and units compnse the
mayornty of benefits that have been granted and are currently outstand-
ing under this program and a pricr program In 2012, Abbott granted
1,931,213 stock options, 2,124,743 replacement stock options,
1,134,062 restricted stock awards and 7,056,609 restncted stock
units under this program The purchase price of shares under option
must be at least equal to the far market value of the common stock
an the dale of grant, and the maximum term of an option 1s 10 years
Options vest equally over three years except for replacement options,
which vest In six months Options granted before January 1, 2005
included a replacerment feature Except for options outstanding that
have a replacement feature, options granted after December 31, 2004
do not include a replacement feature When an employee tenders
mature shares to Abbhott upon exercise of a stock oplion, a replace-
ment stock option may be granted equal to the amount of shares
tendered Replacement options are granted at the then current market
pnce for a term that expires on the date of the undertying option grant

Upaon a changs in control of Abbott, all outstanding stock options
become fully exercisable, and all terms and conditions of all restncted
stock awards and units are deemed satisfied Raestncted stock awards
ganerally vest between 3 and 5 years and for restncted stock awards
that vest over 5 years, no more than one-third of the award vests in
any one year upon Abbott reaching a minimum return on equity target
Restncied stock units vest over three years and upon vesting, the
reciptent receves one share of Abbott stock for each vested restncted
stock unit The aggregate far market value of restncted stock awards
and units 1s recognized as expense over the service penod Restncted
stock awards and settlement of vested restncted stock units are
issued out of treasury shares Abbott generally 1Issues new shares

for exercises of stock options Abbott does not have a policy of
purchasing its shares relating to its share-based programs

At December 31, 2012, approximately 155 millon shares were
raserved for future grants Subsequent to year-end, the reserve was
meduced by approxmately 25 milkon shares for stock options and
restncted stock awards and units granted by the Board of Drrectors

In connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott employeas, Including those employees transfernng to
AbbVie, holding stock options or restncted stock awards or units as
of December 31, 2012 generally receved one AbbVie stock option tor
each Abbott stock option held and one AbbVie restncted stock award
or unit for each Abbott award or unif held For Abbott stock options,
the exercise price of an Abbott option was adusted to reflect the effact
of the separation The per share data presented below has not been
adjusted to reflect this adjustment on the per share amounts
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The number of restncted stock awards and units outstanding and the
weighted-average grant-date faw value at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2012 was 14,698,595 and $50 29 and 15,506,416 and
$53 17, respectively The number of restncted stock awards and units,
and the waighted-average grant-dlate far value, that were granted,

vested and lapsed dunng 2012 were 8,190,671 and $56 74, 6,774,145
and $51 32 and 608,705 and $52 32, respectively The far markst value
of restncted stock awards and units vested in 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $385 milion, $237 milkon and $203 mition, respectvely

Optiens Outstanding Exercisable Options

Weighted Weighted Weightad Weighted

Average Average Average Average

Exercise Remaning Exeroise Remarung

Shares Price Life (Years) Shares Prce Lite (Years)

December 31 2011 85 439,279 $50 52 47 81,734,460 $50 51 45
Granted 4 055 956 6091
Exercised (40 923 524) 4973
Lapsed (380 717) 60 63

December 31, 2012 4B 190,894 $5188 40 43,052,057 $51 36 37

The aggregate intnnsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2012 was $679 milion and $633 millon, respectvely
The total intnnsic value of options exercised n 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $528 milion, $94 milkon and $77 milkon, respectvely The iotal
unrecognized compeansation cost related to all share-based compen-
sation plans at December 31, 2012 amounted to approximately

$174 million, grang effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott,
which 1s expected 10 be recognized over the next three years

Total non-cash compensaton expense charged against incomae in
2012, 2011 and 2010 for share-based plans totaled approximatety
$433 millon, $383 million and $385 million, respectively, and the tax
benefit recognized was approximately $132 milion, $116 milhon and
$119 millon, respectively Compensation ¢ost capialzed as part of
Inventory 1s not sigrificant

The farr value of an option granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
$6 80, $6 23, and $9 24, respectively The farr value of an option grant

was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pncing model with the
following assumptions

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 12% 27% 29%
Average life of options {yaars) 60 60 60
Volattity 21 0% 210% 22 0%
Drndend yeld 36% 41% 32%

The nsk-frea interest rate 1s based on the rates avalable at the time of
the grant for zero-coupon U S government issues with a remaming
term equal to the oplion’s expected life The average Iife of an option I1s
based an both histoncal and projected exercise and lapsing data
Expected volatiity 1s based on implied volatiies from traded options
on Abbott’s stock and hestoncal volatility of Abbott s stack over the
axpected Iife of the option Dmdend yiekd 1s based on the option's
exarcise price and annual dmidend rata at the time of grant
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Note 9 — Debt and Lines of Credit
The following 1s a summary of long-term debt at December 31

{dollars in mikons) 2012 2011 2010
5 15% Notes due 2012 3 - 5 - $ 1000
1 95% Yen Notes due 2013 - 321 299
4 35% Notes, due 2014 - 500 500
1 2% Notes due 2015 (1) 3,500 - -
Vanable Rate Notes, dua 2015 (1) 500 — -
2 7% Notes, due 2015 - 750 750
5 875% Notes, dua 2016 — 2,000 2,000
1 75% Notes, due 2017 (1) 4 000 — —
5 6% Notes, due 2017 - 1,500 1 500
2 0% Notaes, due 2018 (1} 1000 — -
5 125% Notes due 2019 047 2,000 2 Q00
4 125% Notes, due 2020 597 1.000 1,000
2 9% Notes due 2022 (1) 3,100 — -
6 15% Notes due 2037 547 1.000 1,000
6 0% Notes due 2039 515 1000 1000
5 3% Notes due 2040 694 1,250 1,250
4 4% Notes due 2042 {1} 2600 - -
Other mciuding farr value adustments

relating to interest rata hedge contracts

designated as far value hedges 85 719 225
Total net of curent matunties 18 085 12 040 12524
Current matunties of fong term debt 308 1027 2,045
Total camyang amount $18384 $13 067 $14 569

{1} These notes were Issued by AbbVie inc i November 2012 With the separation of
AbbVie on January 1 2013 Abbatt no longer has any obiigahons retated 1o ths debt

In 2012, Abboti redesmed $7 7 billon of its outstanding notes Abbott
incured a cost of $1 35 bilion to extinguish this deby, net of gans
from the unwinding of Interest rate swaps related to the debt In 2012,
AbbVie Inc , a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, 1ssued $14 7 bilkon
of long-tenm dabt with matunties ranging from 3 to 30 years The debt
issued by AbbVie Inc was guaranteed by Abbott with the guarantee
expinng when AbbVie Inc separated from Abbott on January 1, 2013

After the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013, panai-
pal payments raquired on long-term debt cutstanding and retaned by
Abbott are $309 muithon in 2013 and $3 3 bilion in 2019 and thereafter
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At December 31, 2012, Abbott’s long-term debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor’s Corporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Service
In the therd quarter 2012, Abbott replaced unused knes of credit of

$3 0 billon and $3 7 bikon that were to expire in October 2012 and in
2013, respectvely, with two five-year credt facilibes totaling $7 0 bilion
that support commerncial paper borrowing arrangements  Cne of the
credtt faciities totaling $2 0 bilion will support AbbVie commercial paper
borrowings after separation and expired for Abbott at the separation of
AbbVie irom Abbott on January 1, 2013 Abbott's weighted-average
nterest rate on short-term bomowings was 0 4% at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010

Note 10 — Business Combinations, Technology Acquisitions
and Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Piramal Healthcare Limited's
Healthcare Solutions business, a leader in the Indian branded generics
market, for $2 2 billon, in cash, plus addtional payments of $400 mil-
on annually in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbott recorded a

$1 6 bilion kability for the present value of the addiional payments at
the acquistion date The acquistion was financed with cash The allo-
cation of the farr valug of the acquisition resulted in the recording of
$2 7 billon of deductible acquired intangible assets and $1 0 bilion

of deductible goodwill Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanty of
trade names, customer relationships and associated rights and are
amortized over an average of 19 years

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay's pharmaceuticals businass
{Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $6 1 billion, in cash, plus
additional payments of up to EUR 100 million per year if certain sales
milestonas are met in 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approxmately $290 mtlion was recorded The acquisition of Solvay
Pharmaceuticals provided Abbott with a farge and complementary
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott's presence
n key global emerging markats Abboit acquired control of this bus:-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
operations are included in these financial staterments beginning on

that date Net sales for the acqguired operations for 2010 were approxi-
malely $3 1 billon Pretax loss of the acquired operations, including
acquistion, integration and restructuning expenses, for 2010 was
approxmatety $395 millon The acquisition was funded with cash and
short-term investmants  The allocation of tha far vatue of the acquisi-
tion resulted in the recording of $2 2 billion of non-deductible goodwill,
$4 1 bilron of non-deductible intangible assats, $500 milion of non-
deductible acquired in-process research and development assets, net
tangible assets of $700 milhon and deferred income taxes of $t 1 bil-
llon Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanty of product nghts for
currently marketed products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years
(average of 11 years) Acquired in-process research and development
projects are accounted for as indefinite Ived intangible assets until reg-
ulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assets acquired
consist pnmanly of trade accounts recervable of approxmately $675 mul-
lion, inventory of approximatety $390 million, property and equiprment
of approximately $725 mullion, net of assumed habiliies, pnmarily trade
accounts payable, accrued compensation and other liabikties

Had the acquisition of Solvay Phanmaceuticals taken place on
January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diluted earnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 tillion,
$4 6 bilion and $2 96, respectively The pro forma nformation ncludes
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adjustments for amortzation of ntangible assets and farr value adjust-
ments to acquisition-date mventory as well as acquistton, integration
and restructunng expensas The pro forma financial information 15 not
necessanly indicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been effected on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquired STARLIMS Technologies for approxi-
mately $100 midbon, in cash, nat of cash held by STARLIMS, providing
Abbott with leading products and expertise to build its posttion in
laboratory informatics A substantial porton of the {ar value of the
acquisiion has been allocated to goodwill and amortizable intangble
assets In Apnl 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of Facet
Bictech Corporation for approximately $430 millon, in cash, net of
cash held by Facet The acquisiion enhanced Abbott's early- and
md-stage pharmaceutical ppeline including a biologic for muitiple
sclerosis and compounds that complement Abbott's cncology
program A substantial portion of the fair value of the acquisiion was
allocated to acquired In-process research and development that 1s
accounted for as an indefinite ived intangible asset untl regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquesition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisiions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoli-
dated net sales and incorme would not have been significantly different
from reported amounts

Abbott’s Propnetary Phamaceutical Products segment has entered into
vanous collaboration research and development agreements In 2012,
Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under development for the prevention
of acute kidney inury associated with major cardiac surgery in patients
al increased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott recorded a
charge to acquired In-process and collaborations research and develop-
ment of $110 milion tn addiion, In 2012, Abbott entered into a global
collaboration to develop and commercialize an oral, naxt-genaration
JAK1 inhibitor in Phase |} development with the potential to treat muttiple
autommune diseases, and as a result of thws transacton Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research
and development of $150 milkon  Additional payments of approximatety
$1 2 billon could be required for the achievement of certain develop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement
Under another collaboration, Abbott was grantad the nghts in 2012 to
utlize up 1o three antibody-drug conjugate compounds and Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research
and development of $28 milion Addtional payments of approximately
$220 million for each licensed compound could be required for the
achieverment of certan development, regulatory and commercial mile-
stones under this agreement In connection with the acquisition of
Solvay Pharmaceuticals, the achievernent of a certain sales milestone
resutted in a payment of approximately $134 milion in the first quarter
of 2012 for which a hability was previously established

Dunng 2010 and 2011, Abbotl entered info a senes of transachons

with Reata Pharmaceuticals which included (1) a collaboration agree-
ment for the joint development and commearcialization of second
generation oral antioxdant inflammation modutators resulting in a charge
to acquired in-process and collaborations research and development of
$400 million in 2011, (2) an agreement to acquire lcensing nghts outside
the U 8, excluding certan Asian markets, to bardoxolone methyl, a
product in development for the treatment of chroric kdney disease
resulling m a charge o acquired n-process and collaboratons research
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and development of $238 mulion in 2010 and {3) the acqursition of
equity Interests mn Reata of $62 milkon each in 2011 and 2010 In 2011,
certain milestones were achieved in the development for the treatment
of chronic kidney disease and charges to acquired in-process and col-
laborations research and development of $188 million were recorded

in the first quarter of 2012, $50 millon of research and development
expense was recorded related to the achievement of a clinical develop-
mant mitestone under the leense agreement The license agreement
requires addihional payments of up 1o $150 million ff certain development
and regulatory milestones associated with the chronic kedney disease
compound are achieved

On October 17, 2012 Reata wmformed Abbott that 1 discontinuing
the Phase Ill clirucal study for bardoxclone methy! for chromic kidnay
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to determine whether there is an appropnate path forward for
the development of bardoxolone methyl In chronic kidney disease or
other indicabions In the fourth quarter ©f 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 million for the impasment of the equity
nvestment N Reata

In 2011, Abbott enterad into an agreement with Biotest AG {o develop
and commercialize a treatment for rhsumatoid arthntis and psonasis
resutting in a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations
research and development of $85 milion Additional payments totaling
up to $395 mdlion based on projected regulatory approval tmelines
could be required for the achievement of certain development, reguta-
tory and commercial milestensas under this agreement in 2010, Abbott
entered into an agreement with Neurocnne Brosciences to develop
and commerciahize a product tor the treatment of endometniosis result-
Ing 1IN a charge to acquired n-process and collaborations rasearch

and development of $75 millon Addiional payments of approxmately
$500 million could be raquired for the achievement of certain develop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Abboit recorded goodwil of approxmately $3 4 bilion in 2010 related
to the acquisitions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business, Piramal
Healthcare Limited's Healthcare Solutions business, Facet Biotech and
STARLIMS Technologres Goodwill ralated to the Sehay, Pramal and
Facet acquisitions was allocated o the pharmaceutical products seg-
ments In addiion, in 2010, Abbott paid $250 million to Boston
Scientific as a result of the approval to market the Xence V drug-elut-
Ing stent in Japan, resutting in an increase n goodwllin the Vascukar
Products segmant Forexgn currency translation and other adustments
increased {decreased) goodwillin 2012, 2011 and 2010 by $69 mil-
hon, ${225) milion and ${879} milhon, respectvely The amount of
goadwill related to reportable segments at December 31, 2012 was
$6 3 billion for the Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment,

$3 0 billion for the Established Pharmaceutical Products segment,
$209 milion for the Nutntional Products segment, $388 millon for the
Diagnostic Products segment, and $2 7 bilion for the Vascular
Products segment There were no significant reductions of goodwill
relating 1o impairments or disposal of all or a portion of a business

The gross amount of amoertizable ntangible assets, prmanly product
nghts and technology was $17 6 bilkon, $17 5 billion and $17 3 billion

a4

as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and accumu-
lated amortization was $9 7 billion, $8 3 biflion and $6 5 billon as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecively Indefinte-lved
intangible assats, which relata to In-process research and develop-
ment acquired in a business combination, were approximately $691
million, $814 mithon and $1 4 billon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2019, respectvely In 2012 and 2011, Abbott recorded impatrment
charges of $82 million and $174 million, respectively, for cartain
research and development assets due to changes in the projected
development and regulatory timehines for the projects The 2012
charge relates to a non-reportable segment and in 2011, $125 mifion
related 1o a non-reportable segment and $49 mallion related to the
Other category in Abbott’s segment reporting Discounted cash flow
analysis was used to analyze farr value and the charges ars included in
research and development expenses The estimated annual amortiza-
hen expense for ntangible assets recorded at December 31, 2012,
adjusted for the separation of AbbVie from Abboll, 15 approxmately
$800 rmillion in 2013, $675 milion in 2014, $590 milion n 2015,

$605 milion n 2016 and $565 milion in 2017 Intangible asset
amortization 1s included in Cost of praducts sold in the consolidated
statement of earnings Amorizable intangible assats are amortized
over 2 to 30 years {average 11 years)

Mote 12 — Restructuring Plans

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans 1o streamline vanous
commercidl operalions in order to reduce costs and improve efficen-
ctes in Abbott's core diagnostics, established pharmaceutical and
nutrtionals businasses Abboit recorded employee related severancs
charges of approxamately $167 million in 2012 Addtional charges of
approximatety $22 milion were also recorded n 2012, pnmartly for
asset impairments Approximatety $70 milion is recorded in Cost of
products sold and approximately $119 milhon as Seling, general and
admimistrative expense As of December 31, 2012, no significant cash
payments have been made relating to these actions

In 2011 and prior years, Abbott management approved plans 1o
malign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascutar manufactunng
operations and selected domastic and international commercial and
research and development operations in order to reduce costs In
2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approximately $194 mik-
lion and $56 million, respectwely, reflecting the impairment of
manutactunng faciihies and other assets, employes severance and
other related charges Approximately $76 milion in 2011 1s classified
as Cost of products sold, $69 milion as Research and development
and $49 millon as Seling, general and administratve  Approximately
$56 milion in 2010 1s classified as Cost of products sold The following
summarzes the acimty for these restructunngs

{doltars in mifions)

Accrued balance at January 1 2010 $145
2010 restructunng charges 56
Payments, impaiments and other adjustments {124)
Accrued batance at December 31, 2010 77
2011 restructunng charges 164
Payments impairments and other adustments (S4)
Accrued batance at December 31 2011 177
Payments and other adustments (48)
Accrued batance at December 31 2012 3128
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An additional $110 milion, $25 million and $13 milllon were recorded
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmanly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved restructunng plans
pnmanly related to the acquistion of Solvay's pharmaceuticals busi-
ness Thessa plans streamline oparations, improve efficiencies and
reduce costs in certain Solvay sites and functions as well as In certain
Abbott and Solvay commercial organizations in vanous countnes

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approxmatety $150 milion for
amployee severance and contractual obligations, pnmanty related to
the exit from a research and development facility Approximately
$142 million s recorded as Research and development and $8 milhon
as Seling, general and administrative In 2010, Abboti recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Selling, general and administratve of approximately $99 mallion,

$152 milbon and $272 million, respectively The following summanzes
the actmity for these restructunngs

{dloltars i mfions)

2010 restructunng charge $523
Payments, impairmments and other adjustments (113}
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 410
Payments and other adjustments (302)
Accrued balance at December 31 2011 108
Restructunng charges 150
Payments and other adjustments (143)
Accrued balance at Decernber 31 2012 $115

An additional $38 milion, $102 millon and $12 milkon were recorded
In 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmarly for additional employee severance and accelerated
depreciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to streamline
glabal manufactunng operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
efficiencies in Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge

of $28 midlon was racorded in Cost of products sold The following
summarzes the actwty for these restructunngs

{doRars i rmylirons)

Accruad balance at January 1 2010 £98
Payments and other adustments (10
Agcrued balance at Decemnber 31 2010 as
2011 restructunng charge 28
Payments and other adjustments 37}
Acciued balance at December 31 2011 79
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Accrued balance at Decernber 31 2012 £56

In addition, charges of approximately $16 million, $42 rmilon and $60
rmallion were recorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmanly for acceler-
ated depreciation and product transfer costs
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Note 13 ~ Guarterdy Results {Unaudited)

{dodlars in midlons excep! per share data) 2012 2011 2010
First Quarter

Net Sales $94566  $90409 $7.608 4
Gross Profit 57317 51819 4363 2
Net Earnings 12421 8638 1,0030
Basw: Earnings Per Common Share {a) 79 56 65
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (&) 78 55 64
Market Pnce Per Share-High 61 490 49 a5 5679
Market Pnce Per Share Low 53 96 45 07 52 21
Secornd Quarter

Net Sales $9,807 1 $6,616 3 $8 826 0
Gross Profit 61698 57458 5,282 1
Net Earmungs 17248 18428 12917
Basic Earnings Per Commen Share (a) 109 124 83
Dilted Earrings Per Common Share (a) 108 123 83
Market Pnce Per Share High 64 47 54 24 5325
Marsket Price Per Share Low 5904 49 05 4526
Third Quarter

Net Sales $9,7733 398167 386745
Gross Profit 60752 5,843 4 4,933 4
Net Eamings 1,942 8 3032 8907
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a) 122 19 58
Diluted Earrengs Per Common Share (a) 121 19 57
Market Pnce Per Share-High 7041 53 60 52 86
Market Pnce Per Share-Low 63 51 46 29 44 59
Fourth Quarter

Net Sales $10,8369 $10377 4 $99678
Gross Profit 867775 6,539 6 59228
Net Earmnings 1,053 4 16187 14408
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a) 66 103 93
Diuted Eamungs Per Common Share (&) 66 102 52
Market Pnce Per Share Hgh 72 47 56 44 5375
Market Price Per Share Low 62 62 48 96 46 03

(a) Tha sum of the quarters basc earnngs per shera for 2011 and 2010 and diuted samings
per share for 2012 and 2011 do not add o the ful year earmangs per share amaounig dué 1o
rounding
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Management Repert on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

The management of Abbott Laboratones 1s responsible for establishing
and mantaning adequate internal control over financial reporting Abbott's
intermal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to
tha company’s management and board of directors regarding the prep-
aration and far presentation of published financial statements

All intarnal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
mherent imitations  Therefora, even those systems determined to
be effectve can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation

Abbott's management assessed the effectiveness of the company's
Internat control over finaneial reporting as of December 31, 2012

In making this assessment, it used tha cnteria set forth in infematl
Contral — Infegrated Framework ssued by the Commitiee of Sponsonng
Crganrahons of the Treadway Commission Based on our assessment,
we believe that, as of December 31, 2012, the company's intermnal control
over financial reporting was effectve based on those entena

Abbott’'s ndependent registered public accounting firm has 1ssued an
audit report on ther assessment of the effectiveness of the company's
ntemal control over financial reporting This report appears on page 47

Miles D White
Chairman of tha Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C Freyman
Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Greg W Linder
Vice President and Controller

February 15, 2013
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Sharehoiders of Abbott Laboratories

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Abbott Laboratones and subsidianes (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the related consohdated
staterments of earnings, comprehensive Income, sharaholders’
investmeant, and ¢ash flows for the years then ended These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's managemant
Our responsibrlity 1s 10 express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits

We conducied our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {Unded States} Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtan reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
matenal misstaternent An audit includes exarmining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financial
statements An audit also Includes assessing the accounting pnnciples
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that cur audits provide a reasonabte basis for our opinion

In our opinion, such consoidated financial statements present fairty,
in all matenal respects, the financial posibon of the Company as

of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the results of its
operations and s cash flows for the years then ended In conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amenca

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,

an January 1, 2013, the Company distnbuted all of the outstanding
shares of AbbVie Inc , which encompasses the Company’s
research-based pharmaceuticals business, to the Company's share-
holders As also discussed in Note 1, in 2011 the Comparny changed
the year end of its foreign subsidianes from a Novermber 30 fiscal year
and to a December 31 calendar year end

Wa have also audted, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the cntena established in internal Control — Integrated
Framawork 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 15, 2013
expressed an unqualfied opimon on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 15, 2013

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ahbott Laboratores

Wa have audited the nternal control over financial reporting of Abbott
Laboratones and subsidianes (the “Company™ as of December 31,
2012, based on cntena establshed in Internal Controt — Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organzations of
the Treadway Commussior: The Company s management 1s responsi-
ble for mamntaning eflective internal control over financial reporting and
for 15 assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reportng, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internat Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility 15 to
express an opinion on the Company's mnternal controt over financial
reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit In accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perferm the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether effective intemal contret over financial
reporting was maintained in al matenal respects Our audit included
obtaning an undarstanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the nsk that a matertal weakness exists, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed nsk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necassary In the orcumstances We believe that our audt
prowvides a reasonable basis for our opinion

A companys intarnal control over financial reporting 1s a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company s prnncipal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company s board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel to prowde reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabiity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting pnnciples A company’s intemal control over financial
raporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the
mantenance of records that, n reasonable detall, accurately and farty
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
(2) provicle reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting prnciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with
authonzations of management and drectors of the company, and

(3} providie reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timety detec-
tion of unauthonzed acquistion, use, or disposition of the company s
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent kmitations of internal contro! over fingncial
raporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper manage-
ment overnde of controls, matenal misstatements due to emor or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis Also, projections
of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over finan-
cial reporting to future penods are subject to the nsk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes in condiions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or proceduras may detenorate

In our opinion, the Company mantaned, in all matenal respects, effec-
tive Intarnal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the critena established in Internal Control — integrated
Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsonng Crganizations

of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the consol-
dated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and our report dated February 15, 2013
expresses an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and
ncludes an explanatory paragraph regarding the distnbution of the
shares of AbbVie Inc to the Company's shareholders and the
Company's change to the year end of its foreign subsidianes

Delontte & Touche LLP
Chicago, lhinois
February 15, 2013
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Market Pnce Sensitive Investments

Abbott holds avalable-for-sale equity secunties from strategic
technology acquisibons The market value of these investments was
approximately $76 milkon and $93 million as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively Abbott monrtors these investments for other
than temporary dechnes in market vafue, and charges mpament
losses to ncome when an other than temporary decling in valug
occurs A hypothetical 20 percent decrease in the share pncas of
these investments would decrease ther far value at December 31,
2012 by approximately 315 millon (A 20 percent decrease s believed
to be a reasonably possible near-term change in share prices )

Non-Publicly Traded Equrty Secunties

Abbott holds equity secunties from strategic technology acquisitons
that are not traded on public stock exchanges The carrying value of
these Investments was approxmately $137 milllon and $224 mithon
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively No individual invest-
ment 1s recorded at a value in excess of $30 millon Abbott monitors
these investments for other than temporary declines in market value,
and ¢harges imparment losses to Income when an other than tempo-
rary decline in estimatad valug occurs

Intarest Rate Sensitive Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $9 5 bilion and $6 8 billon, respectvely, to manage
its exposure to changes in the fair value of dabt Tha effect of these
hedges 1s to change the fixed interest rate to a vanable rate Abbott
does not use denvatve financial instruments, such as nterest rate
swaps, to manage its exposurs to changes n interest rates for its
investment securities At December 31, 2012, Abbott had $1 3 billion
of domestic commercial paper outstanding wiath an average annual
interest rate of 0 32% with an average remaining life of 17 days

The tar value of long-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to $19 6 bilkon and $15 1 billon, respectvely (average nterest
rates of 2 9%) with matunties through 2042 At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the farr value of curment and long-term investment secunties

amounted to approximately $4 6 billon and $1 7 bulion, respectively
A hypothetical 100-basts point change i the interest rates would
not have a matenal effect on cash flows, Income or market values
(A 100-basis point change 1s believed to be a reasonably possible
near-term change in rates )

Foreign Currency Sensitive Financial Instruments

Certan Abbott foregn subsidianes enter into foreign currency forward
exchange contracts 1o manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases by those
subsidianes whose functional currencies are not the U S dollar These
contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of the vanability of the
cash flows due to changes In foreign currency exchange rates and
are marked-to-rmarket with the resulting gans or losses reflacted In
Accumulated other comprehensve income (loss) Gans or losses

will be included in Cost of products sold at the time the products are
sold, generally within the next twelve months At December 31, 2012
and 2011, Abbott held $1 6 bifkon of such contracts, which all mature
In the following calendar year

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to
manage Its exposure tc foreign currency denominated intercompany
loans and trade payables and third-party trade payables and recerw-
ables The contracts are marked-to-market, and resulting gains or
losses ars reflected in income and are generally offset by losses or gans
on the foreign currency exposure being managed At December 31,
20112 and 2011, Abbott held $18 2 billon and $15 7 billon, respectively,
of such contracts, which mature in the next twelve months

Abbott has dasignated foreign denominated short-term debt of
approximately $615 million and approximatety $680 million as of
Decembar 31 2012 and 2011, raspectively, as a hedge of the net
investment In a foreign subsidiary Accordingly, changes in the farr
value of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded
in Accumulated other comprehenswve income (foss), net of tax

The following table reflects the total toreign cumrency forward contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Farr and Fair and

Waeighted Carrying Weghted Camying

Average Vahie Average Value

Caontract Exchange  Recetvable/ Contract Exchange  Recernable/

{dallars i rodions) Amount Rate {Payable) Amount Rate {Payable}

Recewe pnmarily U S Doltars

n exchange for the following currencies

Eurc $11 343 1317 $ @ $10526 1328 $102

British Pound 1318 1621 1 150 1571 3

Japanese Yan 2,624 812 9 2,458 803 <]

Canadian Doflar 332 992 1 280 1026 2)

Al other currendies 4,169 NA (33) 2544 N/A {1)

Total $19,792 §(26) $17 300 $ 99




Financial Review

Abbott's revenues are derved pnmanly from the sale of a broad line
of health care products under short-term recevable arrangemants
Patent protection and kcenses, technological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbott's products under a contract or by
a pharmacy benefilt manager most impact which products are sold,
price controls, campetition and rebates most impact the net seling
pnces of products, and foreign currency translation impacts the
measurement of net sales and costs Abbott's pnmary products are
nutntional products, prescription pharmaceuticals, diagnostic testing
producis and vascular products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separats Nto two
publicty traded companies, one in diversified medical products and
the other in research-based pharmaceutcals To accomplish the
saparabon, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc {*AbbVie")
for its research-based phammaceuticals business which consists
primanly of Abbott's Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment
OnJanuary 1, 2013, Abbott distnbuted all of the outstanding shares
of AbbVie to Abbott s sharshalders As a result of the disinbution,
AbbVie 15 now an indapendent company trading under the symbol
"ABBV" Begtnning In the first quarter of 2013, the historical results
of the research-based phamaceuticals business will be reflected in
Abbott's consohdated financal staterments as discontinued operations

Pnor to the separation of AbbVie, sales in international markets were
approximately 60 percent of consolidated net sales Post-separation,
sales outside the U S are expected to compnse approximately

70 parcent of net sales

Continued robust growth of HUMIRA n a broad range of indicatians,
the acquisitions of Solvay s pharmaceuticals busness (Sohvay
Phammaceuticats) and Pirramal Healthcare Limited's Healthcare
Solutions business, sales growth and margin improvement in the
nutnitonal and diagnostics busingsses, a government investigation
of Abbott's sales and marketing activities related to Depakots,

and the challenging economic and fiscal environment 1n many
countnes around the world have impacted Abbott s sales, cosis
and financial position over the last three years

Pharmaceutical research and development was focused over the iast
three years on therapeutic areas that included wmmunology, oncclogy,
neurascience, pan management, hepatiis C {HCV), chronic kidney
disease and women's heatth in addiion, Abbott acquired the nghts to
vanous m-process phamaceutical research and development projects
ncluding the development of second-generation oral antioxidant
inflammation modulators and an oral, next-generation JAK1 nhibitor
with the potential to treat multipte autoimmune diseases

In 2003, Abbott began the worldwide launch of HUMIRA for rheumatoid
arthntis, followed by launches for six additional ndications in the U §
and eght additional indications m the Eurcpean Union HUMIRA's world-
wide sales increased 1o $9 3 bion in 2012 compared {o $7 @ bilion

In 2011, and $6 5 bilion n 2010 Geneng competition for 7nCor began
in the tourth quarter of 2012 Austenty measures implemented by
saveral European countnes reduced healthk:are spending and affected
phammaceutical pncing aver the last three years The U S propnetary
pharmaceuticals business was negatively affected by the 2010 U S
heaith care reform legislation which resutted in rebate changes begin-
rung 1n 2010 and the payment of an annual fee beginning in 2011
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In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay Pharmaceuticals which
provided Abbott with a large and complementary portfolio of pharma-
ceutical products and expanded Abbott's presance in key global
emerging markels The acquisition added approximately $3 1 bition to
Abbott's 2010 net sales, pnmarly outside the U S In September 2010,
Abbott completed the acquisiion of Pramal’s Heatthcare Solutions
business, propelling Abbott 1o market leadership in the Indian pharma-
ceutical market and further accelerating the company s growth in
emerging markets Abbott recorded expense of approximately

$262 mithon n 2012, $345 millon n 2011 and $710 midlion in 2010
related to the integration of the Solvay business and restructunng
plans to streamiine operations, improve efficiencies and reduce costs
pnmanty in certain Solvay sites and functions

In May 2012, Abbott reached resolution of all Depakote-related
federal claims, Medicaid-related claims with 49 states and the Distnct
of Columbia, and consumer protection claims with 45 states and the
Distnict of Columbia Abbott recorded charges related to this matter of
$1 5 bilion n 2011 and $100 mllion in 2012, of which approximately
$1 6 bilion was paid in 2012

I Abbott s wordwide nutrtional products business, sales were posi-
tvely mpacted by demographics such as an aging population and an
increasing rate of chronic disease in developed markets and the nse

of a middle class in many emerging markets, as wel as by numerous
new product Introductions that leveraged Abbott’s strong brands

At the same time, manufactunng and distnbution process changes and
other cost reductions drove margin improvements across the business

In Abbott's wordwide diagnostics business, margin improvement
contnued to be a key focus and operating margins increased from
14 7 percent of sales n 2010 1o 18 7 percent in 2012

Over the last threse years, Abbott continued to build as Xence
drug-eluting stent franchise with the receipt of approval to market
Xience Xpedition in vanous countries, including U S approval in the
fourth quarter of 2012 as well as the launches of Xience nano and
Xience PRIME mthe US n 2011, and Xience PRIME and Xence V
in Japan in Apnl 2012 and January 2010, respectively Xence, which
includes Xence V, PRIME, nano and Xpedition, ended 2012 as the
market-leading drug eluting stent globally in 2011, the third party
distnbutor of the Promus product began transitioning away from
the product and that supply agreement ended in 2012 The effect
of the winding down of the agreement will continue into the first
quarter of 2013

In 2010, the US government passed health care reform legislation
which inctuded an increase in Medicaid rebate rates and the extension
of the rebate to drugs prowided through Medicaid managed care orga-
nizations beginming n 2010 The legistation also imposed annual fees
which phammaceutical manufacturers began paying in 2011 and medi-
cal device companies will begin paying in 2013, as well as additonal
rebates retated to the Medicame Part D “donut hole™ beginning n 2011
In addition 1o a 2010 one-time charge of approximately $60 milion to
reduce deferred tax assets associated with retiree health care habilties
related 10 the Medicare Part D retiree drug subsidy, the legislation’s
negative impact on Abbott's performance grew from mare than

$200 milion in 2010 to approxmately $400 million per year in 2011
and 2012 The $400 mihon annual impact included approximately
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$100 rmillon for the annual pharmaceutical manutacturer fea This fee
15 not tax-deductible and 1s included n selling, general and admirustra-
v expenses With the separation of AbbVie at the beginning of 2013,
Abbott no konger sells pharmacseutical products inthe U S and therg-
fore 15 no longer subject to tha annual pharrmaceutical fee or the
additional rebates Beginning in 2013, Abbott will begin paying the

2 3 percent madical device tax under U S health care reform legisla-
tion This tax will be included n seling, general and adminsstrative
expenses and the amount of the tax 1s not expected to be matenal

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extingushed $7 7 billion of
leng-term debt and incurred a charge of $1 35 bilion refated to the
sarly repayment, net of gains from the unwinding of ntenest rate
swaps related 1o the debt Abbott's short- and long-term debt totaled
$20 5 billon at December 31, 2012 This balance ncludes $1 billion
of short-borrowings and $14 7 bilion of long-term debt that was
Issued by AbbVie Inc in 2012 After the separation of AbbVie on
January 1, 2013, Abbott has no remaining obligations related to this
$15 7 bilion of debt At Decembaer 31, 2012, Abbott's long-term dabt
rating was A+ by Standard and Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's
Investors Service Operating cash flows in excess of capital expendi-
tures and cash dvidends have partially funded acquisitions over the
last throe years

In 2013, Abbott will focus on several key imtiatives In the nuinbional
business, Abbott will continue to build its product portfolio with the
Iintroduction of new science-based products, expand in high-growth
amerging markets and implement additional margin mprovement ini-
tiatives In the established pharmaceuticals business, which includes
international sales of branded genenc products, Abbott will continue
to focus on obtaining additional product approvals across numerous
countries and expanding its presence in emerging markets In the
diagnoshics business, Abbett will focus an the development of next-
generabion instruments and other advanced technologies, expansion
n emerging markets, and further improvements in the segment’s
operatng margin In the vascular business, Abbott will continue 1o
focus on marketing products in the Xeence and endovascular fran-
chises, ncreasing international MitraClip sales, and obtaning
regulatory review of the MitraClip device in the U S as welt as furthar
clirwcal development of ABSORB, its bioresorbable vascular scaffold
(BVS) device and a further roll-out of ABSORB m numerous countnes
In Abbott s other segments, Abbott will focus on developing diffarenti-
ated technologies in higher growth markets

Cntical Accounting Policies

Sales Rebates - In 2012, approximately 56 percent of Abbotts con-
solidated gross revenues were subject 1o vanous forms of rebates and
allowances that Abbott recordad as reductions of revenues at the time
of sale Most of thesa rebates and allowances are n the Propnetary
Pharmaceutical Products segment and the Nutntiona! Products seg
ment Abbott provides rebates to pharmacy benefit management
companies, state agencies that administer the fedsral Medicaxd pro-
gram, insurance companies that administer Medicam drug plans, state
agencies that admiruster the Special Supplemental Nutrntion Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC), wholesalers, group purchas-
Ing organizations, and other government agenctes and private entities

Rebate amounts are usually based upon the velume of purchases
using contractual or statutory pnces for a product Factors used in the
rebate calculations include the identificaton of which products have
been sold subject to a rebate, which customer or government agency
prce tarms apply, and the estimated lag time between sale and pay-
ment of a rebate Using histonical trands, adjusted for current changes,
Abbott estimates the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and
records the liability as a reduction of gross sales when Abbott records
its sale of the product Settlement of the rebate generally occurs from
two to eight months after sale Abbott regularly analyzes the histoncal
rebate trends and makes adjustments to reserves for changes in
trends and terms of ebate programs Rebates and chargebacks
charged against gross sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
approxamately $6 2 bilion, $5 5 bilkon and $4 9 billion, respectively, or
22 9 percent, 22 2 percent and 23 1 percent, respectivaly, based on
gross sales of approximately $26 9 bilion, $24 8 billion and $21 1 bil-
llon, respectively, subject to rebate A one percentage point increase
in the percentage of rebates 1o related gross sales woutd decrease
net sales by approximately $269 mition n 2012 Abbott considers

a ong-percentage point Increass to be a reasonably likely increase

in the percentage of rebates to refated gross sales Other allowances
charged against gross sales wero approximately $542 million,

$409 mulion and $415 mullion for cash discounts i 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and $365 milion, $490 milkon and $537 mifon

for returns i1 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Cash discounts are
known within 15 to 30 days of sale, and therefore can be relably
estimated Returns can be reliably estimated because Abbott's histon-
cal returns are low, and because sales returns terms and other sales
terms have remained retatively unchanged for several periods

Management analyzes the adequacy of ending rebate accrual bal-
ancas each guarter In the domestic nutritional busingss, management
usaes both internal and external data avalable to estimate the tevel

of inventory in the distnbution channel Management has access to
several large custormers’ inventory management data, and for other
customers, utlizes data from a third party that measures time on the
retal shelf These sources allow managament to make reliable est-
mates of inventory In the distnbution channel Except for a transtion
pencd before or after a change in the supplier for the WIC business
m a state, inventory in the distnbution channel does not vary substan-
tially Management also estimates the states processing lag time
based on clams data In addition, internal processing time 1s a factor
n estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state where the
sale 1s made, which 1s the determining factor for the applicable pnce,
1S relably determuinable Estimates are required for the amount of WIC
sales within each state where Abbott has the WIC business External
data sources utilized for that estimate are parhcipant data from the

U S Department of Agncutture (USDA}, which administers the WIC
program, participant data from some of the states, and internally
administered market research The USDA has been making its data
available for many years Internal data includes histoncal redemption
rates and pncing data At December 31, 2012, Abbott had WIC
business in 22 states
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in the domestic propretary pharmaceutical business, the most
significant charges aganst gross sales are for Medicaid and Medicare
Rebates, Pharmacy Benefit Manager Rebates and Wholesaler
Chargebacks In order to evaluate the adequacy of the ending accnual
balances, management uses both internal and external data to esti-
mate the leve! of nventcry In the distnbution channel and the rebate
clams processing lag time External data sources used to estimate
the inventory In the distnbution channel include inventory levels penod-
ically reported by whotesalers and third party market data purchased
by Abbott Managernent astimates the processing lag tme based on
penodic sampling of claims data To estimate the pnce rebate percent-
age, systems and calculations are used to track sales by product by
customer and to estimate the contractual or statutory pnce Abbotts
systemns and calculations have developed over time as rebates have
become more significant, and Abbott believes they are reliable

The following table 1s an analysss of the four largest rebate accruals,
which compnse approximately 70 percent of the consoclidated rebate
provisions charged against revenues In 2012 Remaning rebate
provisions charged against grass sales are not significant 1n the
determination of operating earnings

Domestic Propiietary
Pharmaceutical Products
Domestic Medicaid  Pharmacy
Nutnlionals and Benefit  Wholesaler
WIC Medicara Manager Charge-
{daitars n milions) Rebales Rebates Rebates backs
Balance at
January 1 2010 $153 $ 352 $239 § 160
Prowvisions 616 899 841 1,162
Payments (640) 617) {670) {1,163)
Balancs at
December 31, 2010 129 634 410 158
Provisions 575 885 831 1361
Payments {668} {899) {735} (1,349)
Balance at
December 31, 2011 136 720 506 171
Provisions 657 1,077 830 1645
Payments (670} {390) {840} (1,592)
Batance at
December 31 2012 $123 $ 807 5 496 5 224

Historically, adjustments to prior years' rebate accruals have not been
matenal to net iIncome Abbott employs vanous techniques to venfy
the accuracy of claims submitted to it, and where pessible, works with
the organizations submitting claims to gain insight into changes that
right affect the rebate amounts For Medicaid, Medicare and other
governmeni agency programs, the calculation of a rebate involves
Interpretations of relevant regutations, which are subject to challenge
or change 1n interpretation
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income Taxes — Abbott operates in numenous countnes where its
income tax returns are subject to audits and adjustments Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audit tems are often very
complex, and the objectives of the government auditors can resutt In
a tax on the same income N more than one country Abbott employs
intarnal and exiernal tax professionals to minimeize audnt adjustment
amounts where possible In accordance with the accounting rules
refating to the measurement of tax contingencies, n order to recognize
an uncertan tax benefit, the taxpayer must ba moere likely than not of
sustaining the position, and the measurement of the benefit 1s calcu-
lated as the largest amount that 1s more than 50 percent Iikely to

be realized upon resolution of the benefit Apphication of these rules
requrres a significant amount of jJudgment Inthe U S, Abbott's federal
income tax returns through 2009 are settled except for one ttem, and
the income tax returns for years after 2009 are open Abbott doas

not record deferred incoma taxes on eamings reinvested indafininety

in foregn subsidianes

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott offers pension
henefits and post-employment health care to many of its employees
Abbott engages outside actuanes to assist in the datermmation of ihe
obligations and costs under these programs Abboit must develop
long-term assumptions, the most signdicant of which are the health
care cost frend rates, discount rates and the expected return on plan
assets The discourd rates used to measure habilities were determined
based on high-quality fixed iIncome securities that match the duration
of the expacted ratiree benefits The health care cost trend rates repre-
sent Abbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health
care benefits and 1s a forward projection of health care costs as of the
measurement date A difference between the assumed rates and the
actual rates, which will not be known for decades, can be significant
in relation to the obligations and the annual cost recorded for these
programs Low asset returns due to poor market condiions and low
nterest rales have significantly increased actuanal losses for these
plans At December 31, 2012, pretax net actuanal losses and pnor
service costs and (credits) recognized in Accumulated other compre-
hensive ncome (loss) for Abbott's defined benefit plans and medical
and dental plans were losses of $4 8 billon and $372 million, respec-
tively Actuanal losses and gains are amortized over the remaining
service attnbution penods of the employees under the comdor
method, iIn accordance with the rules for accounting for post-employ-
ment benefits Diffarences batween the expected long-term return on
plan assets and the actual annual return are amortized over a five-year
perod Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements descnbes the
impact of a cne-percentage point change in the health care cost trend
rate, however, there can be no certanty that a change would be im-
ited to only one percentage point

Valuation of Intangibla Assets — Abbott has acquired and continues

to acquire significant intangible assets that Abbott records al fair value
Transactions invohng the purchase or sale of intangible assets occur
with some frequency between companies in the health care field and
valuations are usually based on a discounted cash flow analysis The
discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the timing
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and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital, terminal
values and market participants Each of these factors can significantly
affect the value of the intangible asset Abbott engages independent
valuation experts who review Abbott’'s entical assumptions and
calkculations for acquistions of signdficant intangibles Abbott reviews
definite-Ived intangible assets for impairment each quarter using an
undiscounted net cash flows approach If the undiscounted cash
flows of an intangible asset are iess than the carrying value of an
intangible asset, the intangible asset 1s wntten down to its far value,
which s usuatly the discounted cash flow amount Where cash flows
cannot be identified for an indmdual asset, the review 1s appled at the
lowest group level for which cash flows are identifiable Goodwill and
tndefinta-Ived intangible assets, which relate to in-process research
and development acquired in a business cormbination, are reviewed
for impairment annualty or when an event that could result in an
impairment occurs At December 31, 2012, goodwill and intangibles
amounted to $15 8 bilon and $8 6 bilkon, respectively, and amortiza-
tion expense for intangible assets amounted to $1 4 bilion n 2012
Thera were no Impairments of goodwill in 2012, 2011 or 2010 In 2012
and 2011, Abbott recorded imparment charges of $82 milion and
$174 mithion, respectively, for certan research and developrment assets
due to changes i the projected development and regulatory tmelines
for the projects

Ligation — Abbott accounts for itigation losses in accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification No 450, "Contingencies ”
Under ASC No 450, loss contingency provisions are recorded for
probable losses at management's best estimate of a kiss, or when a
best estimate cannot be made, a minimum loss contingency amount
15 recorded These estimates are often iniially developed substantially
sarlier than the uthmate loss 1s known, and the estimates are refined
each accounting penod as additional infarmation becomes known
Accordingly, Abbott is often initially unable to develop a best estimate
of loss, and therefore the minimum amount, which could be zero,

15 recorded  As information becomes known, ether the minimum loss
amount 1s increased, resutting In additional loss provisions, or a best
estimate can be mads, also resulting in addibional loss provisions
Occaswonally, a best estimate amount 15 changed to a lower amount
when events rasult in an expectabion of a more favorable outcome than
previously expected Abbott estimates the range of possible loss to be
from approximataely $70 million to $100 milion for its legal procesdings
and environmental exposures Accruals of approximately $80 million
have been recorded at December 31, 2012 for these proceedings and
exposures These accruals mprasent management’s best estmate of
probabile loss, as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contngencies ™
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Results of Operations
Sales

The following table details the components of sales growth by repart-
able segment for the last three years

Total Componenis of Change %

% Change Pnce Volume  Exchange
Total Net Sales
2012vs 2011 28 17 38 29
2011 vs 2010 165 12 65 28
2010 vs 2009 143 on 132 12
Total U §
2012vs 2011 48 56 08 -
2011 vs 2010 54 44 10 —
2010 vs 2009 68 o7 61 -
Total International
2012 vs 2011 11 10 71 50
2011vs 2010 143 12 108 49
2010vs 2009 207 {08 193 22
Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 55 45 37 27
2011 vs 2010 10 35 52 23
2010 vs 2009 136 03 127 06
Established Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 44 (13 34 {6 5)
2011 vs 2010 200 (17 174 43
2010 vs 2009 517 03 481 29
Nutntional Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 77 45 42 (10)
2011 vs 2010 86 30 36 20
2010 vs 2009 47 17 12 18
Diagnostic Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 40 (14} 87 33
2011 vs 2010 88 {11} 65 34
210 vs 2009 80 01 43 16
Vascutar Products Segment
2012vs 201 79 52) 04 {2 3)
2011 vs 2010 44 43 55 az
2010 vs 2009 186 47) 223 10

Total Net Sales in 2012 reflect unit growth, partially offset by the
mpact of unfavorable foreign exchange The decrease In 2012
Vascular Products sales s partially due to the winding down of royalty
and supply agreements related to certain third-party products, includ-
ing Prormus  Excluding this royalty and supply agreement revenue in
both penods and the unfavorable seffect of exchange, Vascular
Products sales increased 3 4 percent in 2012 In 2011 and 2010,
Total Net, Total U S, Total International, Propretary Pharmaceutical
Products segment and Established Phanmnaceutcal Products segmant
sales reflect the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business on
Fabruary 15, 2010 and unit growth, while the relatively weaker U S
dollar favorably impacted international sales across all segments

Total Net, Total International and Established Pharmaceutical Products
segment salas growth in 2011 also reflects the acquistion of Prramal
Heatthcare Limited's Healthcare Solution business in September 2010
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A companson of significant product and product group sales Is as
follows Percent changes are versus the pnor year and are based on
unrounded numbers

Percent Parcent Parcent

(dofiars in rrullions) 2012 Change 2011 Change 2010 Change

Propnetary Pharmaceuticals —

Total U S

Proprietary sales $10.158 7 $9,455 8 $3,744 12
HUMIRA 4376 28  3.4z7 19 2872 14
TRILIP TCor 1,088 20y 1,372 1 1,355 1
Nraspan a11 {7} 976 5 827 8
AndroGe! 1,152 32 ar4 35 649 n/m
Lupron 569 5 540 12 483 {11)
Synthrard 551 6 522 16 451 e]
Creon 353 7 332 35 246 vm
Kaletra 280 {14} 328 {10} 383 {19)

Total International

Propnetary sales 7,854 3 7625 15 6645 16
HUMIRA 4,889 9 4,505 23 3.676 24
Kaletra 733 (13) 844 5 8g2 3
Lupron 231 (14) 270 2 265 2

Total Estabhshed

Phamaceuticals — 5121 @) 5,355 20 4 461 52
Clanthromycm 501 @ 551 6 521 {11}
ThCor and Lipanthyt
{fencfibrate) 292 5) 308 24 248 n/m
Creon 306 4 296 58 187 n/m
Serc 205 {12) 233 30 180 n/m
Duphastor 259 16 223 64 136 n/m
Synthroid 105 1 103 g a5 19

Nutntionals —

U S Pediatnc Nutrtionals 1 445 14 1268 5 1208 7}

International Pecdhatnc

Nutntionals 2080 8 1926 15 18676 9

U S Adult Nutntonals 1 452 6 1388 2 1,345 8

international

Adutt Nutntionals 1484 4 1427 13 12868 15

[hagnostics —

Immunochemistry 3,279 4 3150 8 2904 4

Vascular Products (1) —

Xiance 1599 3 15658 14 1370 a0

Other Coronary

Products 598 {1) 605 8 555 5

Endovascutar 452 1 449 g 414 5

n/m — Percent change s not meanngtut
{1) Other Coronary Products include pramarty guidewwres and baoon cathgters
Endovascular mclucies vessel closure carpbd stents and other penpheral products

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Excluding the negative effect of exchange, Total International
Propnetary salas mcreased 8 9 percent in 2012 In Propnetary
Pharmaceuticals, a genenc version of TiCor entered the U § market
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Total Established Phamaceutical
Products sales decreassd in 2012 due to the negatve effect of
exchange and decreased sales of Clanthromycin and Serc dus to,

n part, pncing prassures In Europe, partially offset by growth in
emerging markets Excluding the effect of exchange, Total Established
Phamaceutical Products sales increased 2 1 parcent U S Pedalinc
Nutntional sales in 2012 reflect market share gains for Simlac and
unit growth for PediaSure The increase n 2012 U S Aduft Nutntional
sales reflects unit growth for the Ensure and Glucema products
International Pediatnc and Aduft Nutritionals salas ncreases over

the three years were due pnmanly to volume growth In developing
countnes and were negatively impacted in 2012 by the effect of the
refatively stronger U S dollar

The increases in U S Propnetary product sales in 2011 and 2010

are pnmanly due to ncreased sales of HUMIARA and the acquisition of
Solvay Pharmaceuticals in February 2010, partally offset by decreased
sales of Depakote, Zemplar, and Kaletra The increases in Established
Phammaceutical sales in 2011 and 2010 are pnmanly due to the acgun-
sitions of Solvay Pharmaceuticals and Piramal and growth in emerging
markets U S Pediatne Nuintionals sales in 2011 and 2010 were
affected by the voluntary recall of certan Similac-brand powder infant
formulas in September 2010 and the subsequent recovery in market
share In 2011 Intemational Propnetary Pharmaceutcals, International
Aduit Nutritionals and Immunochemistry sales were positively
impacted by the effect of the relatvely weaker U S dollar in 2011

and 2010 Abbott has penodically sold product rights to non-strategic
products and has recorded the related gains in net sales in accor-
dance with Abbott's revenue recognitton policies as discusssad in

Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements Related net sales
were approximately $58 milkon tin 2010, while theré were no signficant
sales i 2012 and 2011

The expiration of icenses and patent protection and genanc competi-
tion can affect the future revenues and operating ncome of Abbott
There are currently no significant patent or icense expirations n the
next three years that are expected to affect Abbott after the separation
of AbbVie

Operating Earnings

Gross profit margins were 62 1 parcent of net sales in 2012, 60 0 per-
cent: 2011 and 58 3 percent n 2010 The Increase in the gross profit
margin in 2012 was impacted by timproved gross marging across all
reportable segments as a result of cost reduchon nitiatives, the impact
of exchange and favorable product mix The increase in the gross
profit margin n 2011 was due, in part, to mproved margins in the
established pharmmaceutical, diagnostics and diabetes businesses and
was partally offset by the untavorable effect of exchange on the profit
margin ratio The increase in the gross profit margin in 2010 was due,
in part, to improved margms n the estabhshed pharmaceutical, vascu-
lar, diabetes, diagnostics and nulntional businesses and the favorable
effect of exchange on the gress profit margin ratio
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Inthe U S, states receve pnce rebates from manufacturers of infant
formula under the federally subsidized Special Supplemental Nutntion
Program for Women, Infants, and Children There are also rebate
programs for pharmaceutical products in numerous countnes These
rebate programs continue to have a negative effsct on the gross profit
margins of the Nutntional, Propnetary Phamaceutical and Established
Pharmaceutical Products segments

Research and develapment expense was $4 322 bilon n 2012,

$4 129 bilkon in 2011 and $3 724 bilion in 2010 and represented
increases of 4 7 percent n 2012, 10 9 percent in 2011 and 35 7 per-
cent In 2010 Excluding charges related to the Solvay restructunngs
announced in September 2010, research and development expense
increased 6 2 percent in 2011 and 29 4 percent In 2010 The 2010
ncrease, exclusve of the efiects of the restructunng charges, reflects
the acquisitions of Solvay’s pharmaceuticals business in February
2010 and Facet Biotech in Apnil 2010 The increases in 2012, 2011
and 2010 alsa reflect continued pipeline spending, mciuding programs
n biologres, hepatitis C and diagnostics The magonity of research and
davelopment expenditures over the three years were concentrated

on pharmaceutical products $2 9 bilhon of Abbott's 2012 research
and development expenses related 10 Abbott's pharmaceutical
products, of which $2 2 billion was directly allocated to the Proprietary
Phamnaceutical Products segment In 2012, research and develop-
mant expendtures totaled $367 milion for the Vascular Products
sagment, $382 million for the Diagnostics Products segment,

$275 milion for the Established Pharmaceutical Products segment
and $186 million for the Nutntional Products segment

Selling, general and admimnistrative expanses decreased 5 5 percent in
2012 and increased 22 8 percent in 2011 and 23 4 percent in 2010
2012 includes approximately $405 milion related to the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott and a $100 milion Iitigation charge related to the
government iInvestigation related to Depakote while 2011 includes a
Itigation charge of $1 5 billion related to the Depakote nvestigation
Excluding separation costs, lihgation charges and Solvay-related
restructuning and integration costs, sselling, general and admimstratve
expenses Increased 4 6 percent in 2012 and 6 7 percent in 2011
Excluding charges related to Solvay restructuning and intagration proj-
ects, seling, general and administrative expenses in 2010 increased
18 2 percent This Increase, exclusive of the effects of the restructunng
and integration charges, reflects the acquisiions of Solvay’s pharma-
ceuticals business in 2010 and Advanced Medical Optics, Inc 1n 2009
and higher provisions for Iiigation in 2010 The remaining increases in
salling, general and administrative expenses over the three year penod
waere due pnmanly to increased seling and marketing support for new
and exssting products, including continued spending for HUMIRA,
inflation, and in 2011, the iImpact of the pharmaceutical fee imposed
by U § healthcare reform legislation

Restructunngs

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans to streamiine vanous
commercal aperations in order to reduce costs and improve efficien-
ciss In Abbott s core diagnostics, established pharmaceutical and
nutntwnals businesses Abbott recorded employes related severance
charges of approximately $167 milhon in 2012 Addtional charges of

approximately $22 millon were also recorded in 2012, pnmarily for
asset imparments Approximately $70 milion 1s recorded in Cost of
products sotd and approximately $119 milion as Seling, general and
administratve expensa  As of December 31, 2012, no sgnificant cash
payments have been made relating to thesae actions

In 2011 and pnor years, Abbott management approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commearcial and
research and development operations in order 10 reduce cosis

In 2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approximately

$184 million and $56 million, respectively, reflecting the imparment
of manufactunng faciities and other assets, employea severance and
other related charges Approximately $76 millon in 2011 1s classified
as Cost of products sold, $69 milion as Research and development
and $49 milon as Seling, general and administratve Approximately
$56 millien in 2010 1 classified as Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actmty for these restructunngs

{dloftars m mulhons)

Accrued balance at January 1 2010 $145
2010 restructunng charges 56
Payments imparments and cther adjustments (124)
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 77
2011 restructunng charges 194
Payments impairments and other adjustments 94}
Accrued balance at December 31 2011 177
Payments and other adjustments {48)
Accrued balance at December 31 2012 $129

An addional $110 mibon, $25 million and $13 million were recorded
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, refating to these restruciunngs,
pnmarly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010 Abbott management approved restructunng

plans pnmarly related to the acquistion of Solvay s pharmaceuticals
business These plans streamiine operations, mprove eficiencies and
reduce costs In certain Solvay sites and functions as well as in certain
Abbott and Sohvay commercial organizations in vanous countnes

In 2012, Abbott recordad a charge of approximately $150 million for
employee severance and contractual obligations, pnmanly related

to the exit from a research and development facility Approxmately
$142 milion 15 recorded as Research and davelopment and $8 milion
as Selling, general and administrative In 2010, Abbott recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Selling, general and administrative of approximately $99 milon,

$152 mlion and $272 rallion, respoectively The following summanzes
the actmty for these restructunngs

{dolars i milions)

2010 restructunng charge $523
Payments, mpairments and other adustments {113)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 410
Payments and other adjustments (302)
Accrued balance at Decemmber 31 2011 108
Restructunng charges 150
Payments and other adjustments (143}
Accrued balance at December 31 2012 $115
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An additional $38 milion, $102 milion and $12 mihon were recorded n
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely, relating to these restructunngs, pn-
manly for additional employee severance and accelerated depreciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott managemant approved plans to streamkne
global manufactunng operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
afficiencies In Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge
of $28 milion was recorded in Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actmty for these restructunngs

(dofars in mifions)

Accrued balance at January 1 2010 508
Payments and other adjustments (L))
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 88
2011 restructunng charge 28
Payments and other adpstments 37}
Accrued balance at December 31 2011 70
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Accrued balance at December 31 2012 356

In addition, charges of approximatety $16 midlion, $42 mikon and
$60 million were recorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmanly for accel-
erated depreciation and product transfer costs

Interest expense and Interest {ncome)

In 2012, interest expense increased pnmanly due 1o bndge facility
fees related to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott In 2011, interest
expense decreased due to lower debt lavels Interest ncome n 2012
and 2011 decreased as a result of lower rates In 2010, interest
expense incraased due pnmanty (0 increased debt levels Interest
income decreased i 2010 due to lower investment balances

Change in Accounting Pninciple and Other {iIncome) expense, net

Pnor to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidianes were
consolidated based on a fiscal year ended November 30 due to the
time needed to consclidate these subsidianes Effective January 1,
2011, the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of
foreign subsidianes was eliminated and the year-end of foreign subsid-
1anes was changed te December 31 Abbott bebeves that the change
In accounting principle related to the emination of the one month
raporting lag s preferable because it results n more contemporaneous
reporting of the results of foreign subsidianes In accordance with
applicable accountng erature, a change n subsiianes’ year-ond 15
treated as a change in accounting principle and requires retrospective
applicaton The cumulatve effect of the change was an increase in
ratained earnings of $289 million as of January 1, 2009 and a come-
sponding decreass in other long-term kabites The impact of the
change was not matenal to the results of operations for the previously
raported annual and intenm penods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
those resulls have not been rewsed A charge of $137 miflion was
recorded to Other (income) expense, net in 2011 1o recognize the
cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financal
statements been revised, net sales, cperating earnings and net eam-
ings in 2010 would have decreased by $21 million, $1985 milion and
$175 million, respectvety
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Cther income) expense, net, for 2012 includes income of approx-
mately $60 millon from the resclution of a contractual agreement and
a loss of approximately $62 matlion for the imparment of certain equity
securties Other (income) expenss, net, for 2011 includes $56 milkon
of farr value adjustments and accration in the contingent consideration
related to the acquisshion of Solvay s pharmaceutical business Other
{income} expense, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongo-
Ing contractual payments from Takeda associated with the conclusion
of the TAP jont venture

Net Loss on Extinguishrment of Debt

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 billon of
long-term debt Abbott Incurred a cost of $1 35 billion to extinguish
thus debt, net of gains from the unwinding of interest rate swaps
refated to the debt

Taxes on Earnings

The income tax rates on earnings were 4 8 percent in 2012, 9 Q per-
cent in 2011 and 19 0 parcent in 2030 Taxes on earnings n 2012
reflect the $493 million effect of the tax rate apphed 1o Abbott's net
debt extinguishment loss as well as the recognition of $408 mullion of
tax benefits as a result of the favorable resolution of vanous tax posi-
tons pertaining to a prior year, which also decreased the gross
amount of unrecognized tax benefits by approximately $560 midlion
Taxes on earnings In 2011 reflect the effect of the tax rate apphed to

a Itigation reserve and the recognihion of $580 milion of tax benefits
as a result of the favorable resolution of vanous tax positions pertaining
to prior years, which atso decreased the gross amount of unrecog-
nized tax benefits by approximately $1 3 bilion Excluswe of these
discrete tems, the effective rates are lower thanthe U S {ederal
statutory rate of 35 percent due pnmarly to the benefit of lower foreign
tax rates and tax exemptions that reduced the tax rates by 24 8, 22 9,
and 19 4 percentage points in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely

The tax rate reductions ara pnmarnly denved from operations in

Puerto Rico, Switzerand, Ireland and Singapore where Abbott benefits
from a combination of favorable statutory tax rules, tax rulings, grants,
and exemplions See Note 5 1o the consolidated financial statements
for a full reconciliation of 1he effective tax rate to the U S federal
statutory rate

As a result of the Amanican Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 signed into
law In January 2013, Abbott expects to record a tax benefit of
approximatety $100 million in the first quarter of 2013 for the retroac-
trve extension of the research tax credit and the look-through rules
of section 954(c){} of the Intermal Revenue Code to the beginning

of 2012 Excluding this and any other discrete tems, Abbott expects
to apply an annual effective rate of approximately 21 percent

As a rasult of the Patient Protecton and Affordable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act which were signed into
law in 2010, Abbott recarded a charge of approximately $60 million in
2010 to reduce deferred tax assets assoctaled with retires health care
labiities related to the Medicars Part D retiree drug subsidy

In October 2010, Puerio Rico enacted legislation that assesses a tax
beginrang in 2011 on certain products manufactured in Puerto Rico
The tax 15 levied on gross intercompany purchases from Puerto Rican
entihes and s includad in inventory costs In 2012 and 2011, cost of
goods sold inctuded $187 milion and $111 milion, respectvety,
related to this tax The tax s creditable for U S income tax purposes
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Research and Developrment Programs

Abbott currently has numerous pharmaceutical, medical and nutntional
products in development

Research and Development Process

In the Propnetary Pharmaceutcals segment, the research and
development process generally begins with discovery research which
focuses on the identification of a molecule that has a desired sffect
against a given disease If prechnical tasting of an identified compound
proves successful, the compound moves into clinical development
which generally includes the following phases

s Phase | — involves the first human tests in a small number of
heatthy volunteers to assess tolerability and potential dosing

« Phase || — tests the molecule’s efficacy against the disease
In a small group of patients

* Phase lll — tests a molecule that demonstrates favorable results
in the earker phases in a significantly farger patierd population to
further demonsirate efficacy and safety based on regulatory cntena

The chinical tnats from all of the development phases provide the
data required to prepare and submit a New Drug Apphcation (NDA),
a Biological License Application (BLA) or other subrrussion for regula-
tory approval to the U S Food and Drug Administration (FDA) or
similar government agencies outside the U S The speciic require-
ments {e g, scope of clinical tnals) for obtaining regulatory approval
vary across different countnes and geographic regions

The research and development procass from discovery through
anew drug launch typically takes 8 - 12 years and can be even fonger
There 1s a significant amount of uncertainty inherent in the research
and development of naw pharmaceutical products and there i1s no
guarantee when, or If, a moleculs will receve the regulatory approval
required 10 launch a new drug or indicaton

In addition to the development of new products and new formulations,
propnietary pharmaceutical research and development projects also
may Include Phase [V trals, sometimes called post-marketing studies
For such projects, clinical tnals are designed and conducted to collect
addhional data regarding, among other parameters, the benefits and
nsks of an approved drug

In the Established Phamnaceuticals segment, the development
process focuses on the geographic expansion and continuous
improvement of the segment s existing products to provide banefits
to patients and customers As Established Pharmaceuticals does
not actively pursus pnmary research, development usually begins
with work on existing products or after the acquisiion of an advanced
slage licensing opportunity

Depending upon the produgt, the phases of development may include
* Drug product development

* Phase | bioequivalence studies to compare a future Established
Phamaceutical's brand with an already marketed compound with
the same active pharmaceutical ingredient (AP}
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* Phase ll studies io test the efficacy of benefits in a small group
of patients

= Phase lll studies to broaden the testing to a wider poputation that
mflects the actual medical use

* Phase IV and other post-marketing studies to obtan new clinical
use data on existing products within approved indications

The specific requirements (8 g scopa of clinical tnals) for obtaning
regulatory approval vary across different countries and geographic
regions The procass may range from one year for a bicequvalence
study project to 6 or more years for complex formulations, new indica-
tions, or geographic expansion in specific countnes such as China

In the Diagnostics segment, the phases of the research and
developmeni process include

» Discovery which focuses on identification of a product that will
address a specific therapeutc area, platform, or unmet cincal need,

* Concept/Feasibility dunng which the matenals and manufacturing
processes are evaluated, testing may includs product characteriza-
tion and analysis 1s performed to confirm clirucal utilty, and

« Development during which extensive testing 1s performed to
demonstrate that the product meets specified design requirements
and that the design specifications conform to user needs and
ntended uses

As with pharmaceutical products, the regulatory requirements for
diagnostic products vary across diferent countnes and geographic
regions In the U S , the FDA classifies diagnostic products into
classes (I, I, or lll) and the classification determines the reguiatary
process for approval While the Diagnostics segment has products
in all three classes, the vast majorty of its products are categonzed
as Class | or Class || Submission of a separate regulatory filng s
not required for Class | products Class Il dewices typically require
pre-market notification to the FDA through a regulatory filng known
as a 510{k) submission Most Class Il products are subject to the
FDA'S Pre-Marketing Approval (PMA) requrements Other Class |l
products, such as those used to screen blood, require the submission
and approval of a BLA

In the EU, diagnostic products are also categonzed nto different cate-
gonges and the regulatory process, which 18 governed by the European
In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Dewvice Directive, depends upon the cate-
gory Certain product categories require review and approval by an
independent company, known as a Notified Body, before the manufac-
turer can affix a CE mark to the product to show comphance with the
Directive Other products only require a self-cartification process

In the Vascular segment, the research and development process
begins with research on a specific technology that 15 evaluated for
feasibility and commercial viability If the research program passes that
hurdle, it moves forward into development The development process
includes evaluation and selection of a product design, completion of
clinical inals to test the product’s safety and efficacy, and valdation of
the manulfactunng process to demonstrate its repeatability and atility
to consistently meet pre-determined specifications
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Similar to the diagnostc products discussed above, inthe US,
vascular products are classified as Class |, I, or Il Most of Abbott s
vascular products are classified as Class Il devices that follow the
510(k} requlatory process or Class |l dewices that are subject to the
PMA process

In the EU, vascular products are also categonzed mnto diffarent classes
and the regulatory process, whwch 1s governed by the Europaan
Madical Device Directive, vanes by class Each product must bear

a CE mark to show compliance with the Directive Some products
require submission of a design dosser to the appropnate regulatory
authonty for review and approval priar to CE marking of the device
Far other products, the company ts required to prepare a technical
file whuch includes testing resutts and clincal evaluations but can
self-certity its ability to apply the CE mark to the product Outside the
U S and the EU, the regulatory requiraments vary across different
countnes and regions

After approval and commercial launch of some vascular products,
post-market tnals may be conducted elher due to a conditional
requirement of the regutatory market approval or with the objective
of proving product supenorty

In the Nutntionat segment, the research and development process
generally focuses on dentifying and developing ingredients and prod-
ucts that address the nutntional needs of particular populations (e g ,
infants, athletes) or patients (e g , people with diabetes) Depending
upon the country andfer region, f clams regarding a product’s efficacy
will ba made, clinical studies typically must be conducted Most other
product development, such as a product form change from liquid to
powder, generally does not necessiiate clinical studies

Inthe U S, the FDA raquires that it be notified of proposed new
formulations and formulation or packaging changes related to infant
formula products  Pror to the launch of an infant formula or product
packaging changs, the company 1s required to obtain the FDA'S
confirmation that it has no objections to the proposed product ar
packaging For other nutrition products, notification or pre-approval
from the FDA 1s not required unless the product includes a new food
additive in some countnes, regulatory approval may be required

{or certain nutntional praducts, including infant formula and medical
nutritional products

Areas of Focus

In 2013 and beyond, Abbott’s significant areas of therapeulic focus
will include the following

Established Pharmaceuticals — Abbaett s actively working on plans for
about 20 - 30 key brands Depending on the product, the development
actvties focus on new data, markets formulations, combinations,

or Indications  Abbott focuses on buikding country-speciic portfolios
made up of global and local pharmaceutical brands that best meet
each local market’s needs Owver the next several years, Established
Pharmaceuticals will work to expand the market for many of its
products through registrations across multiple geographies, including
key emerging markets
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Vascular — Ongoing projects m the prpehine include

» Xience Xpediton, our next-generation drug-sluting stent (DES)
with enhanced delverability and an expanded sze matnx It utlizes
the Xience PRIME stent, everolimus and biocompatible coating
technology but Incorporates new catheter technology for impraved
delwerabilty Xience Xpedition receved U S regulatory approval
in December 2012 and 1s also avalable in Europe and parts of
Asia and Latin Amenca Abbott expects to launch the product in
addtional markets in 2013

= Absorb, the world's first drug eluting bioresorbable vascular
scaffold (BVS) device for the treatment of coronary artery disease
that is gradually resorbed into the vessel wall In January 2013
Abbott iniated the ABSORB lil clinical tnal whichis designed to
enroll approximately 2,250 patients of which the majanty will be in
the U S The data from this tna! will be used to support the U S
regutatery filng of Absorb In 2011 Abbott released five-year data
from its ABSORB climical tnal, which showed efficacy and safety
resulls consistent with the four-ysar data In 2011 after recemng
CE Mark approval for Absarb, Abbott intiated a randomized,
controlled chinical trial to further study the dewice in an expanded
population In Europe In 2010, Abbott initiated the ABSORB
EXTEND clhinical tnal which wall enrall up to 1,000 patients with
more complex coronary artery disease

* MitraClip device for the treatment of rmitral regurgitation —
Abbott's MitraClip system which 18 on tha market in Europe and
in parts of Asta and Latin Amenca s currently under review for
approval by the FDA An amended filing to the FDA was submitted
in December 2011 A FDA panel 1s expected 1o review the filng
In the first half of 2013

* Coronary and endovasclilar core product projects, including new
coronary and endovascular guide wires  The Absolute Pro and
Omnilink Elite stent systems, both for the treatment of ikac artery
diseasse, a forn of penpheral artery disease that affects the lower
extremities, wers launched inthe US mn 2012

Medical Optics - Abbatt 1s developing a number of new products

for patients undergong cataract surgery, which are designed to
improve physician efficiency and patient outcomes Abbott has devel-
oped advanced intraocular lenses (IOLs} that address astigmatism as
well as presbyopia The Tecrus brand monotocal Tonc IOL, which 1s
sold in Europe, 15 currently undergoing U S regulatory review A multi-
focal version of the Tonc IOL was launched in a number of international
markets n 2012 A preloaded I0L inserhon system that is designed to
improva surgeon efficiency 15 also currently under regulatory review in
the U S, the product was taunched in Europe n 2012 Abbott 1s con-
tnuing the development actmties required 1o obtan U S approval for
an enhanced version of tha Synchrony 10L which is designed to mimic
the eya's natural ability to change focus and deliver improved vision at
all distances this product was launched m Europe i late 2012 Abbott
has also developed a new diagnostic instrument and laser treatment
planning software wiich 1s designed to improve visual outcomes After
the receipt of CE Mark approval in November 2011, this instrument
and software were launched in Europe in 2012 A PMA filng forU S
fegulatory approval of this product was submitted in 2012
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Molecular Dagnostics - Vanous new molecular in wiro diagnosbic (VD)
praducts, Including oncology and infectious disease assays and a next
generabion instrument system are in vanous stages of development
and commercialzabion Abbott's companion diagnostic test for an
ALK gene rearrangement test for non-small-cell lung cancer has been
approved in mere than 40 countnes around the world In 2012,
companion diagnostic efforts were expanded to include collaborative
efforts with mutttple major pharmaceutical companes IntheU S,

an assay to genotype HCV-infected patients to ard in the choe of an
appropnate therapy was submittad for regulatory approval Additional
assays for infectious diseases including MTb and MTb drug resistance
are In development

Core Laboratory Diagnostics — Abbott 1s working on the development
of assays in vanous areas including infectious diseass, cardiac care,
fertility and metabolics, and on next-generation blood screenng,
hematology, and immunochamistry instrument systems Abbott i1s also
focusing on near-term launches of automation solutions, such as its
next-genearation track system, ACCELERATOR a3600 to increase
efficiency in laboratones

Dabetes Care - In the first guarter of 2012, Abbott obtarned U S
regulatary approval for its FreaStyle Insulinx blood glucose monitoring
system that includes a touch screen nterface and other features
designed to support the insulin-using patient  After recenng CE Mark
for this system n May 2011 and Health Canada approval in October
2011, Abbott 1s continuing 10 provide R&D support as the product

15 launched n additional markets Developrment 1s also continuing on
an updated hospital blood glucose monitaring system for which a fiing
for approval 1s projected to be submitted in the U S dunng the first
half of 2013 Abbott 15 also developing a next-generation monitgnng
system under the Precision product platfiorm and for which Abbott
anticipates submitting filings for approval In vanous markets in the
second half of 2013

Nutriion — Abbott 1s focusing its ressarch and davelopment spend

on six benefit platforms that span the pediatnc, adult and performance
nutntion areas Immunity, cognition, lean body mass, inflammation,
metabolism and tolerance Numerous new products that build on
acvances in these benefit platforms are currently under development
and are expected to be launched over the coming years

Given the dversity of Abbott's business, its intention to remamn a
bread-based healthcare company and the numerous sources for
potential future growth, no Indmidual project s expected to be matenal
to cash flows or results of operations over the next five years Factors
considered Included research and development expenses projected to
be incurred for the project over the next year relative to Abbott's total
msearch and development expenses as well as qualtative factors,
such as marketplace perceptions and impact of a new product on
Abbott's overall market posion There were no delays in Abbott's
2012 research and development actmties that am expected to have

a matenal Impact on operations

While the aggregate cost to complete the numerous projects currently
In development 1s expectad to be matenal, the total cost to complete
will depend upon Abbott s ability to successfully complete each
project, the rate at which each project advances, and the ultimate
timing for complstion Given the potential for significant delays and
the high rate of fallure inherent in the research and development of
new pharmaceitical and medical dewvice products and technologes,

it 15 not possible to accurately estimate the total cost to complete all
projects currently in devalopment After the separation of AbbVie,
Abbott plans to manage its portiolio of projects to achieve research
and development spend equal to approximately 6 percent to 7 percent
of sales each year Abbott does not regularly accumulate or make
management decisions based on the total expensaes incurred for a
parbcular development phase in a given period

Business Combinations, Technology Acquisitons and
Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Pirramal Healthcare Limited s
Healthcare Solutions business, a leader in the Indian branded generics
market, for $2 2 bilkon, n cash, plus addtional payments of $400 mifion
annually In 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbott recorded a $1 6 billicn
liability for the present value of the addiional payments at the acquisition
date The acqusition was financed with cash The allocation of the far
value of the acquisihion resutted In thea recording of $2 7 billion of
deductible acquired intangible assets and $1 0 bilien of deductible
goodwill Acquired intangible assets consist pnmarty of trade names,
customar refationships and associated nghts and are amortized over
an average of 19 ysars

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Sohlvay’s pharmaceutcals business
(Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $8 1 billion, in cash, plus
addtwonal payments of up to EUR 100 millon per year if certan sales
milestones are met 1n 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent conskleration
of approximately $290 millon was recorded The acquisibon of Solvay
Pharmaceuticals provided Abbott with a large and complementary
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott's prasence
In key global emerging markets Abbott acgured control of this busi-
ness on Fabruary 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acqured
operations are included n these financal statements beginning on that
date Net sales for the acquired operations for 2010 were approxi-
mately $3 1 bilhon Pretax loss of the acquired operations, including
acqusition, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $395 million The acquisition was funded with cash and
short-term investments The allocation of the farr value of the acquisi-
tion resulted in the recording of $2 2 bilion of non-deductible goodwill,
$4 1 bilion of non-deductible intangible assets, $500 mitlion of non-
deductible acquired in-process research and development assets, net
tangible assets of $700 million and deferred income taxes of $1 1 bil-
lon Acquired intangible asssts consist pnmanly of product nghts for
curenily markeled products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years




Financial Review

{average of 11 years) Acquired In-process research and development
projects arg accounted for as mdefinte Iived mntangble assets until
regulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assets
acquired consist pnimanly of trade accounts recevable of approxi-
mately $675 milion, nventory of approximately $380 milion, property
and equipment of approximately $725 mellion, net of assumed liabili-
ties, pnmanly trade accounts payable, accrued compensation and
other labilties

Had the acquisiion of Soivay Pharmaceuticals taken place on

January 1, 2010, unaudied pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diluted sarnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 billion,

$4 6 billion and $2 86, respectively The pro forma information Includes
adjustments for amortzation of intangible assets and fair value adjust-
ments to acquisitran-date inventory as well as acquisitoon, ntegration
and restructunng expenses The pro forma financial information 1s not
necessanly indicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been effected on the assumed date

in March 2010, Abbott acquied STARLIMS Technologies for approx-
mately $100 millon, In cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, providing
Abbott with leading products and expertise to build ts position in
laboratory iInfformatics A substantial portion of the far value of the
acquisition has been allocated to goodwill and amortizable intangible
assels In Apnl 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of
Facet Biotech Corporation for approximately $430 mflion, in cash,

nat of cash held by Facet The acquisition enhanced Abbott's early-
and mid-stage phamacsutical pipebne, including a biologic for
muttiple sclerosis and compounds that complement Abbotts oncology
program A substantia! portion of the far value of the acquisttion was
allocated to acquired In-process research and development that s
accounted for as an indefirite-lived intangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquistion of Schvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoli-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly differant
from reported amounts

Abbott's Propretary Phammaceutical Products segment has entered
nto vanous collaboration research and development agreements

In 2012, Abbott acquaed AP214, a drug under development for the
prevention of acute kedney inury associated with major cardiac surgery
n patents at increased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott
recorded a charge to acquined m-process and collaborations research
and develapment of $110 milon In addition, in 2012, Abbott entered
into a global collaboration to develop and commercialize an oral,
next-generation JAK1 inhibitor in Phase 1l development with the
potential to treat muttiple autormmure diseases, and as a result of
this transaction Abbott recorded a charge to acquired in-process and
collaborations research and development of $150 milion Addional
payments of approximatety $1 2 bilkon could be required for the
achievernant of cartan development, regulatory and commargial
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milestones under this agreement Under another collaboration,
Abbott was granted the nghts in 2012 to utilize up to three antibady-
drug conjugate compounds and Abbott recorded a charge to acquired
n-process and collaborations research and development of $28 mil-
lon Additional payments of approximately $220 milion for each
licensed compound could be required for the achievement of certain
development, regulatory and commarcial milestones under this agree-
ment In connection with the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals,
the achievement of a certan sales milestone resutted in a payment

of approximately $134 milion in the first quarter of 2012 for which a
liability was previously established

Duning 2010 and 2011, Abbott entered into a senes of transachions
with Reata Phammaceuticals which included (1) a collaborathon agree-
ment for the jont development and commercialization of second
generation oral antioxidant mflammation moedulators resufting in a
charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research and devel-
opment of $400 millon in 2011, {2} an agreement to acquire licensing
nghts outside the U S, excluding certain Asian markets, to bardoxo-
lone methyl, a product in development for the treatment of chranic
kidney disease resulting in a charge to acquired in-process and collab-
oratons resaarch and development of $238 million in 2010 and (3} the
acquisition of equity interests in Reata of $62 rmllion each 1 2011 and
2010 In 2011, certan milestones were achigvad in the development
for the treatment of chronic kidney disease and charges to acquired
n-process and collaborations research and development of $188 mil-
lon were recorded In the first quarter of 2012, $50 million of research
and development expense was recorded related to the achievemnent
of a clinical development midestone under the license agreement The
license agreement requires addiional payments of up to $150 millon
if certain development and regulatory milestones associated with the
chronic kidney disease compound are achweved

On October 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that 1t 1s discontinuing
the Phase (Il cinical study for bardoxclone mathyl for chronic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to determine whether there 1s an appropnate path forward for
the development of bardoxolone methyl In chronic kidney disease or
other indications In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 milion for the imparment of the equity
investment in Reata

In 2Ch 1, Abbott eniered into an agreement with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialize a treatment for rhoumatod arthntis and psonasis
rasulting in a charge o acquired in-process and collaborations
rasaarch and davelopment of $85 million Addhional payments totaling
up to $395 millkon based on projected regulatory approval timelines
could be required for the achievement of certan development, regula-
tory and commercial milestones under this agreement In 2010, Abbott
entered into an agreement with Neurocrine Biosciences to develop
and commercialize a preduct for the treatment of endometnosis resuft-
Ing i @ charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research and
development of $75 millon Additional payments of approximately
$500 milion could be required for the achwavement of certain develop-
ment, regulalory and commercial miestones under this agreement
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Goodwill

At December 31, 2012, goodwill recorded as a result of business
combsnations totaled $15 8 bilion Goodwill 1s reviewad for imparment
annually or when an event that coutd result In an impanment occurs
The results of the last mpairment test indicated that the far value of
each reporting unit was substantially in excess of ts carnang value
except for the Medical Optics unt While the fair value of the Medical
Optics business exceeds its carmyng value, extended sconomic pres-
sure on gavernment-reimbursed cataract procedures in Europe and
on the globak LASIK surgery business as well as longer regulatory
approval timelines tor products currently under development could
result in a valuation in the future whaere the farr value of the Medical
Optics unit has declined below its carmying value, thereby tnggenng the
requirement to estimate the wnplied far value of the goodwill and mea-
sure for impaiment

Financial Condition
Cash Flow

Net cash from operating actvities amounted to $9 3 bilion, $9 O billon
and $8 7 billen in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectwely Trade accounts
payable and other liabilites in Net cash from operating actvities in
2012 ncludes the payment of approximatety $1 5 bilion related 1o

a ltigaton accrual recorded in 2011 This was partially offset by
increases i other kabilmes, pnmanly restructunng resesves Income
taxes payabls in 2012 and 2011 includes $408 mulion and $580 mil-
lion, respectvely, of tax benefits related to the favorable resolution of
vanous tax positions pertaining to pricr years While substantally all
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 that will be retamned
by Abbott after the separation and all cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 1s considered reinvested indefinitety

in foreign subsidiares, Abbott does not expect such reinvestment to
affect its hquidity and capital resources If these funds were needed

for operatons in the U S, Abbott would be required to accrue and
pay US income taxes to repatnate these funds Abbolt believes

that it has sufficient sources of iquidity to support its assumption that
the disclosed amount of undistnbuted earnings at December 31, 2012
can be considered to be reinvested indefinitely Abbott funded

$379 milson in 2012, $394 mulbon in 2011 and $525 million in 2010 to
defined pension plans Abbott expects pension funding for its main
domestic pension plan of $170 milkon in 2013, the decrease primarly
reflects the separation of AbbVie and the transfer of certan plan
assets and labilities to AbbVie Abbott expects annual cash flow from
operating actnmties to continus to exceed Abbott s capital expenditures
and cash dmdends

For 2010, the reductions in cash and cash equivalents dus to the
effect of exchange rate changes was pnmaniy dnven by the mpact

of changes in the value of the U S dollar compared to the euro on
non-doflar denomnatad cash and cash equivalents While future fluc-
tuations in the value of the U S dollar against foreign cumencies could
have a substantial effect on the dollar value of Abbott's cash and cash
equivalents, such fluctuations are not expected to maltenally mpact
Abbott s igudity

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2012, Abbott’s long-term dabi rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor s Corporation and A1 by Moody s Investors Service
In 2012, Abbott replaced unused lines of credit of $3 O bilon and

$3 7 billion that were to expire in October 2012 and in 2013, respec-
trvaly, with two five-year credit facilities totaling $7 O bulon that support
commercial paper borrowing arrangemnants One of the credit facilities
totakng $2 0 biiion will support AbbVie commercial paper baorrowings
after separation and expired for Abbott at the separation of Abbvie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013

In 2012, Abbott redeemed $7 7 billion of long-term notes in prepara-
ton for the separation of AbbVie from Abbott and repaid $1 bilon

of long-term notes that ware dus In 2012 In addition, AbbVie Inc ,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, issued $14 7 billion of long-term
notes that were guaranteed by Abbott unt! AbbVie s separation from
Abbott on January 1, 2013 In 2011, Abbott repaid $2 0 billon of long-
term notes using primartly short-term borrowings Under a registration
statement filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission in
February 2009, Abbott 1ssued $3 0 billon of long-term debt in the sec-
ond quarter of 2010 with matunty dates in 2015, 2020 and 2040 and
interest rates of 2 7 percent, 4 125 percent and 5 3 percent, respec-
tively The debt due in 2015 was extinguished i 2012 Proceeds from
this debt were used to pay down short-term borrowings

In October 2008, the board of directors authonzed the purchass of up
1o $5 bilion of Abbott's common shares from ttme to tme Under this
authonzation, 37 0 millon and 14 8 millkon shares were purchased
2012 and 2010 at a cost of approximately $2 2 bilion and $800 mil-
lion, respectively No shares were purchased under this authonzation
in 2011 Abbott plans to purchase shares from timae to tme In 2013

The judgment entered in 2009 by tha U S Distnct Court for the
Eastermn Distnict of Texas against Abbott in its Iigation with New York
University and Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secure 1he judgment
in the avent that its appeal to the Federal Circuit courl was unsuceess-
ful in overturning the distnel court’s decision Inv the first quarter of
2010, Abbott deposited $1 87 billion with an escrow agent and con-
sidered thess assets to be restncted On February 23, 2011, the
Federal Circuit reversed the distnct court s final judgment and found
Centocor's patent valkd On Apnl 25, 2011, Centocor petitioned the
Federal Circurt to rehear and reconsider the decision In June 2011
the Fedsral Circurt derued Centocor’s pelition and the restnctons on
the funds were lifted




Financial Review

Working Capital

Working capital was $18 0 bilion at Decemnber 31, 2012, $8 3 bilicn
at December 31, 2011 and $5 1 bifion at December 31, 2010 The
Increase in working capital n 2012 was due pamanly to higher cash
generated from aperating actmtes and higher cash and investments
as a result of the net issuance of long-term debt in connection wath the
separation of AbbVie from Abbott The increase in working caprtal in
2011 was dus primanly to higher cash generated from operating activ-
ties and lower debt levels The decrease in working capital In 2010
was due pnmanly to cash and investments used {0 acquie Solvay's
pharmaceuticals business and Pramal Healthcare Limited's Haalthcare
Solutions business

Substantially all of Abbott's trade recenvables in Italy, Spain, Portugal,
and Gresece are with governmental healih systems Given the eco-
nomic conditions and sovereign dabt issugs In these countries, the
time 11 takes to collect cutstanding recenvables increased i 2011

In 2012, collection times improved relative to 2011 with the exception
of Greece Outstanding net governmenta! recervables in these coun-
tnes at December 31, 2012 wem

Net Percentage Over
(doflars in mdhons) Recenables One Year Past Dus
Haty $564 162
Span 431 o8B
Portugal 121 284
Greece 88 208

With the exception of Greece, Abbott histoncally has collected aimost
all of the outstanding recevables in these countnes Abbott continues
to monitor the credd worthiness of customers located in these and

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

other geographic areas and establishes an allowance against a trade
recevable when it 15 probable that the balance will not be collected

In addition to closely montonng economic conditions and budgetary
and other fiscal developments tn thess countnas, Abbott regularly
communicates with its customers regarding tha status of recevable
batances, including their payment plans and obtains posriive confirma-
tion of the validity of the recevables Abbott also monttors the potential
for and penodically has ullized tactonng arrangements to mitigate
credit nsk atthough the receivables included in such arrangements
have histoncally not been a matenal amount of total ocutstanding
recaevables H government funding were 1o become unavailable in
these countnes or if significant adverse changes n their reimburse-
ment practices were to occur, Abbott may not be able to collect the
entire balance

Capital Expendiures

Capital expenditures of $1 8 bilion in 2012, $1 5 billion in 2011

and $1 0 bilhon in 2010 were principally for upgrading and expanding
manufacturing, research and development, and admurustrative support
faciiies in all segments, investments in informatign tachnology, and
laboratory nstruments placed with customers

Contractual Obligations

The table below summanzes Abbott’s estimated contractual obigations
as of Decermber 31, 2012 The amounts do not reflect the separation of
AhbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 Alter the separation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013, pnncipal payments required on lorg-
termn debt cutstanding and retained by Abbott ars $309 million in 2013
and $3 3 billkon n 2019 and thereafter Payments on long-term debt to
be made by AbbVie, ncluding interest, total approximately $13 6 bilon

{doflars in mithons) Payment Due By Penod
2018 and
Total 2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Thersatter
Long term debt, including curent matunties and future iNterest payments $26 403 $ 839 $ 5039 $4 929 815 596
Operating lease obligatons 795 146 234 170 245
Capstalzed auto lease obligations 92 3N 61 - -
Purchase commitments {a} 3,154 3048 88 1 17
Other long-term kabiies refiected on the consoldated batance sheet —
Benefit plan obligations 5,126 — 1024 1,149 2,953
Other 3868 — 3,662 32 155
Total (b) $39,439 $4 064 $10 128 $6,281 $18 966

(3) Purchasas commitments e for purchases made in the normal course of business 10 meet operational and Capital expendiure requiments

b} Unrecogrized tax benedits totalng $2 O bdion are excludad from the table above as Abbott &8 unabla to reasonably estimate the penod of cash settienent with tha respective taxing

authonites on such dems

61
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Financial Review

Contingent Obligations

Abbott has perodically entered into agreements in the ordinary
course of business, such as assignment of product nghts, with other
companias which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondanly liable
for obbgations that Abbott was prewiously pnmanly kable Since Abbott
no tonger maintains a business relationship with the other parties,
Abbott s unabis to develop an estimate of the maxmum potantia!
amount of future payments, if any, under these obligatons Based
upon past experence, the likalihcad of payments under these agree-
ments 18 remote In addiien, Abbott penodically acquires a businass
or product nghts in which Abbott agrees to pay contingent consider-
aton basad on attaning certasn thresholds or bassed on the
occurrence of certain events

Legislative Issues

In 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act (collectvely referred
1o herein as “heatth care reform legistation™ were signed Into law In
the U S Health care reform legislation included an ncreasa in the
basic Medicard rebate rate from 15 1 percent to 23 1 percent and
extended the rebate to drugs prowded through Medicard managed
care organizations

Beginning in 2013, heatth care reform legislation will elimimate the
federal ncome tax deduction for prescnption drnug expenses of retireas
for which Abbott receves rembursement under tha Medicare Part D
retiree drug subsidy program  As a result, Abbott recorded a charge of
approxaimatety 360 rilion in the first quarter 2010 to reduce deferred
tax assets associated with retiree health care habilities

$150

!

|

\ $50
! 2007 2008 2009 2010
|

Assuming $100 invested on 12/31/07 with dvidends renvested

In 2011, Abbott began recording the annual fee mposed by health
care reform legisiation on companes that selt branded prescnption
drugs to speciiied government programs  The amount of the annual
fee 1s based on the ratio of certain of Abbott's sales as compared to
the total such sales of all covered entities multiplied by a fixed dollar
amount specified in the legislation by year In 2011, addtional rebates
were tcurred related to the Medicare Part O coverage gap “donut
hole " Beginrung in 2013, Abbott will record the 2 3 percant excise tax
mmpased by health care reform legislation on the sale of certan med-
caldevicesinthe U S

Abbott's primary markets are highly competitive and subject to sub-
stantial government regulations throughout the world Abbott expects
debate to continue over the avalabiity, method of delivery, and pay-
ment for health care products and services |t 1s not possible to predict
the extent to which Abbott or the health care industry in general might
be adversely affected by these factors in the fulure A more complete
discussion of these factors 15 contaned in ltem 1, Business, and ltem
1A, Risk Factors, to the Annual Report on Form 10-K

Pnvate Secunties Lihigation Reform Act of 1995 -
A Cauhion Concerming Ferward-Looking Statements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securnties Lihgation
Reform Act of 1985, Abbott cautions investors that any forward-look-
ing statements or projactions made by Abbott, including those made
n this document, are subject to nsks and uncertainties that may cause
actual results to differ matenally from those projected Economic, com-
petitrve, governmental, technological and other factors that may affect
Abbott's operations are discussed in lterm 1A, Risk Factors, 1o the
Annual Report on Form 10-K

Performance Graph

This graph compares the change

In Abbotts cumulative total share-
holder return on its common shares
with the Standard & Poor’s 500
Index and the Standard & Pocrs
500 Health Care Index
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Summary of Selected Financial Data
{colars in mlons, except per share data)
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‘ear Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2006 2004 200G 2002

Sumnmary of Operations

Net Sdes $30,8739 388513 351667 307647 205276 259142 224763 223378 196800 172803 152795

Gost of products sold $151197 155406 146652 13,2003 126120 114220 9,815 1 106411 8,884 2 77742 68205

Research and develcpment (a}  $ 4,322 2 41294 37244 27437 26881 25066 2,2553 18212 16068 16238 14745

Selling general

and adm—ustrative $120585 127568 10,3763 84059 84356 7.4080 63497 5,496 1 49218 4,808 1 3,7249
Operating earmnings 580845 57518 6087 6 62357 56938 45785 20422 43623 38983 29740 31519
Interest expense $ 5924 5301 5531 5197 528 &5 593 1 4162 2414 2002 1883 2339
Interest Incoma 3 B2 B52) (105 5} (137 8) PO 2) {136 8) (1238 (87 7} (51 1) (419} B335
Other {income), net (b) $ 13168 1586 820 {1,375 5) 489 7 (347 5) {526 5) (411 3} (376 4) (559 5} (374 4)
Eamings from conbnuing

cperations before taxes $ 62628 51986 57128 71938 5,856 3 44696 22764 46199 41256 33872 33210
Taxes on earnings from

contnuing eperalions $ 2997 4702 10867 14479 11221 8633 5596 1,247 9 9498 BB2 4 7740
Earnings from

contmueng operations. $ 59628 47284 46262 57458 4,734 2 36063 17168 33721 31758 2,504 7 25470
Basic earnings per share

from continuing operations $ 376 303 298 an 306 234 112 217 203 160 163
Driuted earrings per share

from contimuang operatons § ar2 301 2586 369 303 231 112 216 202 159 162
Financial Position

Workang capital $180424 82885 50551 10264 4 5,106 8 49385 669 3 39705 o088 26509 21196
Long term investments $ 2736 382 3020 11329 10737 $1253 12299 1340 1458 406 4 2508
Net property and equipment $ 80830 78740 7973 C 76195 72182 75181 £69464 6,003 1 6007 9 62818 58281

Total assats $67 2349 B02769 B05739 525816 424192 397139 361782 281412 287675 260393 236927

Long term debt $18,0853 120398 125235 11266 3 87133 94878 70087 45715 478789 34523 42740
Shareholders investment $268132 245261 22,7651 231874 175187 17,8239 140542 14,4153 143258 130723 10,664 6
Return on shareholders’

mvestment from

CONUNLANG OPeranons % 232 200 204 284 269 227 121 235 238 226 280
Book valua per share $ 1701 i562 14 53 1476 1126 1147 914 937 9138 8 36 682
Other Statistics

Gross profit margin % 821 600 583 571 573 559 563 524 549 550 554
Research and development

to net sales % 108 1086 108 a9 91 a7 100 82 86 94 87
Net cash from

Dperaung actviles

of continuing operations. $93144 8,970 1 8,736 0 72752 69946 51838 S52621 5047 4 43060 33852 36536
Capital expendituras $1,7853 1491 5 10151 10880 12877 16562 13378 12075 12016 1,050 1 11054
Cash dmdends declared

per common share g 167 192 176 160 144 130 118 110 104 098 094
Common shares

outstanding (in thousands) 1576667 1570379 1546984 1551168 1552433 1549910 1537243 1539235 1560024 1564518 1,563 068
MNumber of

oomimon shareholders 60476 62,939 64 413 67,461 69733 73176 Trrer 82 237 88,582 91212 94 687
Number of amployees 92 939 91,922 31 440 72 868 68 838 68 697 66,663 59735 80617 58 181 57 819
Sales per employee (ndoliars)  $ 429,033 422 655 384,588 422193 428943 377225 337183 373,948 324 662 297 010 264 265
Market pnco per share~twgh 8§ 7247 644 5679 57 39 6109 5950 a9 87 5000 47 63 47 15 58 00
Market price per share - low $ 5396 4507 44 59 4127 4575 48 75 3918 3750 3826 RS 2980
Market price per share—close § 6550 623 47 91 5399 53 37 56 15 4871 3943 4665 46 60 4000

(B 12012 2011 2010 2009 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 and 2001 Abbott also recondad protax charges of $288 $673 £313 $170 $2,014 $17 $270 $100 $106 and $1 330

respecively tor acquired i process research and developrment
() 2012 mciudes $1 350 for the net koss on extinguishment of deht




